
 

 
 
            

 
 

 
i 

Joint Development Control Committee 
 

Date: Wednesday, 18 October 2023 

Time: 10.00 am  

Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2, The Guildhall, Market Square, Cambridge, CB2 
3QJ 

Contact: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel 01223 457000 
 
Agenda 
 

1    Apologies   

2    Declarations of Interest  
  

Application 

3    23/00835/FUL - Taylor Vinters Merlin Place 460 
Milton Road Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB4 0DP  

(PAGES 3 - 
86) 

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

 

Joint Development Control Committee Members:  

Cambridge City Council: Cllrs S. Smith (Vice-Chair), Baigent, Flaubert, 
Porrer, Smart and Thornburrow, Alternates: Gilderdale, Levien, Nestor and 
Nethsingha 

 

South Cambridgeshire District Council: Cllrs Bradnam (Chair), Cahn, 
Fane, Hawkins, Stobart and R.Williams, Alternates: Cone, Garvie, 
J.Williams and H.Williams 

 

Information for the public 
The public may record (e.g. film, audio, tweet, blog) meetings which are open to the 
public.  
 
For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors and 
the democratic process:  

 Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk  

 Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk 

 Phone: 01223 457000 
 
This Meeting will be live streamed to the Council’s YouTube page. You can watch 
proceedings on the livestream or attend the meeting in person. 
 
Those wishing to address the meeting will be able to do so virtually via Microsoft 
Teams, or by attending to speak in person. You must contact Democratic Services 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk by 12 noon two working days before the 
meeting. 
 

http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk


23/00835/FUL   – Taylor Vinters Merlin Place, 460 Milton 

Road, Cambridge 

Committee Date: 18 October 2023 

Report to:  Joint Development Control Committee 

Lead Officer: Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development 

Ward: East Chesterton 

Proposal: Demolition of 2,730 sqm (GIA) office building (use class E(g)(i)) and 

erection of 13,096 sqm (GIA) of research and development accommodation (use 

class E(g)(ii)), including ancillary accommodation broken down as follows:  

i. Office accommodation (4,648 sqm)

ii. Laboratory space (4,388 sqm)

iii. Café (161 sqm)

iv. Ground floor car park incorporating 45 no. car parking spaces (1,047

sqm)

v. Plant space (924 sqm)

vi. Cycle parking spaces (276 for staff and 37 for visitors, total 313)

vii. Access and circulation areas, engineering works and

footpaths/cycleways

viii. Drainage and servicing infrastructure, and

ix. Hard and soft landscaping.

Applicant: Kadans Science Partner 9 Limited 

Presenting officer: Mike Huntington, Principal Planner, Strategic Sites Team 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Reason presented to committee: This is an application for full planning 

permission in North-East Cambridge, relating to a non-residential building where 

the floor space to be created is more than 1000 square metres and there are 

third party representations on planning grounds contrary to the officer 

recommendation 

Member site visit date: N/A 

Key issues:   

1. Context of the Site, Design and External Spaces 

2. Trees and Landscaping 

3. Transport, Highway Safety and Parking 

Report contents: 

1. Executive summary 

2. Site description and context 

3. The proposal 

4. Relevant site history 

5. Policy 

6. Consultations 

7. Planning assessment 

8. Recommendation 

 

Appendices 

1. Conditions and informatives 

2. Full comments from consultees and quality panel report 

Recommendation: APPROVE application 23/00835/FUL subject to 

(i) Conditions and informatives as detailed in this report, with delegated 

authority to officers to carry through minor amendments to those 

conditions and informatives (and include others considered as 

appropriate and necessary) prior to the issuing of the planning 

permission, and:  

 

(ii) The prior completion of a Section 106 Agreement under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 with delegated authority to officers to 

negotiate, secure and complete such an Agreement and any others 

Page 4

bookmark://_Executive_summary/
bookmark://_Site_description_and/


considered appropriate and necessary to make the development 

acceptable in planning terms. 

 

1.0 Executive Summary 

1.1 The application seeks planning permission for an office and laboratory 

building over seven floors of accommodation.  

 

1.2 The site is located within an area of land identified as part of the emerging 

Northeast Cambridge Area Action Plan (NECAAP). The NECAAP does 

not yet have sufficient weight to be considered a significant material 

consideration in the determination of this application. The National 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the Cambridge Local Plan 2018 

therefore form the basis of the determination of this application.  

 

1.3 The proposal is for over 10,000 square metres of additional employment 

floorspace in an area identified for employment growth in Cambridge. The 

principle of development is therefore supported. 

 

1.4 The proposed development will provide BREEAM Excellent certified 

buildings with a low embodied carbon design and with an all-electric 

approach to energy use that will achieve significant carbon reductions 

once operational. 

 

1.5 The design and appearance of the building is considered appropriate in 

the site’s context and respects its urban setting. Furthermore, the scale 

and massing of the building will not cause visual harm to the wider 

landscape or setting of Cambridge. 

 

1.6 The proposed development will reduce on site car parking and will 

promote sustainable forms of travel to and from the site. This includes 

mitigation through internal infrastructure improvements and a financial 

contribution towards strategic transport infrastructure in northeast 

Cambridge. 

 

1.7 The benefits of the proposals include the promotion of highly sustainable 

modes of travel through minimal car parking on site; a building with high 

sustainability credentials and providing a mix of uses on site including 

employment opportunities and a shared café open to the public with the 

potential of attracting footfall from emerging development around this part 

of Cowley Road.   

 

Page 5



1.8 The proposal would deliver over 10,000 square metres of additional office 

and lab space. The existing building to be demolished has a floorspace of 

2,730 square metres. The proposals will create construction jobs and 

employment within the development. Positive weight is afforded to these 

benefits. The specific benefit to the area’s economy from this 

development, and the extent to which the economic needs of the area can 

be met effectively elsewhere, needs to be balanced with the adverse 

impacts identified that result from the scale and quantum of development 

proposed.   

 

1.9 While there will be a level of harm to existing trees and hedges by the 

removal of some of those trees and hedges, this will be mitigated by new 

and additional planting, together with wider green infrastructure 

enhancements secured through the s106 Agreement. 

 

1.10 Heads of Terms have been agreed for the provision of a strategic 

transport contribution as sought by the County Council which is 

considered to be a positive impact to the comprehensive development of 

the wider Northeast Cambridge Area, as well as a financial contribution 

towards the delivery of green infrastructure in the area.   

 

1.11 In this finely balanced planning judgement, officers have considered that, 

in this case, the wider public and economic benefits arising from the 

scheme outweigh any harm arising from the proposed development.  

 

1.12 Officers recommend that the Joint Development Control Committee agree 

with the recommendation and approve the application for the reasons set 

out in this report. 

2.0 Site Description and Context 

2.1 The site is located between Milton Road and Cowley Road, in a prominent 

location on the northern edge of the city, near to the Science Park, and 

along one of the main routes into the city from the north. It is surrounded 

by roads.  

 

2.2 The site contains an existing 1980s office building, currently providing 

2,730m² of accommodation, and is approximately 0.5 hectares in size. It is 

located entirely within the administrative boundary of Cambridge City 

Council  

 

2.3 The site is relatively flat with the exception of its northern and western 

edges, which bank up a little toward the Milton and Cowley Road 

Page 6



intersection. As a consequence, the ground floor level of the existing 

building sits lower than the street level on the site’s north-western edge. 

On the eastern edge, the building’s entrance and paving is level with the 

road and its general surroundings. 

 

2.4 The site has established trees and hedging on all the boundaries.  

 

2.5 Vehicular access is from Cowley Road to the east, with the building 

entrance towards the north-east of the site, also off Cowley Road. 

 

2.6 There are 93 existing car parking spaces on site, including 3 wheelchair 

accessible spaces. These are located in the forecourt area to the front and 

rear of the building.  

 

2.7 The site is a short distance away from Cambridge North station, 

connected by Cowley Road and a separate off-carriageway cycle lane.  

 

2.8 To the east of the site lies the future development area identified in the 

emerging Northeast Cambridge Area Action Plan (NECAAP), currently 

largely occupied by the Cambridge Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

 

2.9 Immediately opposite the site on Cowley Road is an existing office building 

known as Orwell House, containing a mix of commercial units. This is also 

earmarked as potential redevelopment land as part of the NECAAP. 

 

2.10 To the south of the site, lies the existing Cambridge Business Park, and 

further to the south-west lies residential neighbourhoods, beyond the 

existing Cambridge Science Park. 

3.0 The Proposal 

3.1 The application seeks the demolition of the 2,730 square metres (sqm) 

gross internal area GIA) existing office building (use class E(g)(i)), and the 

erection of 13,096 sqm (GIA) of research and development 

accommodation (use class E(g)), including ancillary accommodation 

broken down as follows: 

 

• Office accommodation (4,648 sqm)  

• Laboratory space (4,388 sqm)  

• Café (161 sqm) 

Page 7



• Ground floor car park incorporating 45 no. car parking 

spaces (1,047 sqm)  

• Plant space (924 sqm)  

• Cycle parking spaces (276 for staff and 37 for visitors, total 

313) 

• Access and circulation areas, engineering works and 

footpaths/cycleways  

• Drainage and servicing infrastructure, and 

• Hard and soft landscaping   

 

3.2 The proposal aims to provide a multi-tenant office and laboratory building 

with flexible office and laboratory spaces over seven floors of 

accommodation, with the building height varying between 24.36 and 30.55 

metres.  

 

3.3 The ground floor facilities would include a reception area adjacent to a 

central atrium, a shared café open to the public and with external space 

and seminar space.  

 

3.4 A ground level double-height entrance foyer faces Cowley Rd and the key 

area of pedestrian/public realm. Behind this, an under-croft car park is 

positioned away from the more active frontage of Cowley Rd. The site 

topography lends itself to the positioning of the car park here, as there will 

be a degree of natural screening as the ground banks up toward the west 

and to the north of the site. 

 

3.5 On level 1, plant space is located to the west, and this will be buffered by 

existing and proposed trees along Milton Rd. 

 

3.6 Levels 2-5 have been designed to service ‘typical’ lab and office 

floorplates. Lab space has been positioned along the Milton Road edge, 

due to their need to be sealed in order to maintain a suitable lab 

environment. The office space is positioned to the east and the north, 

where opportunities for mixed-mode ventilation exist.  

 

3.7 A pocket park is proposed to be located on the southern corner of the site, 

with external cycle stores located to the north of the proposed building, 

adjacent to Milton Road and Cowley Road.  

 

3.8 The proposal will result in the removal of 36 trees and a hedge, but will be 

replaced by 86 new trees. 

 

Page 8



3.9 The proposal would promote minimal car use, utilising good access to 

public transport and provision for secure cycle storage and associated 

changing facilities. A dedicated delivery, lab logistics and goods area 

would also be provided. 

 

3.10 The application is accompanied by the following supporting reports and 

key plans. 

  

− Application plans and drawings 

− Design and Access Statement, including RECAP Waste Management 

Design Guide Toolkit 

− Design Compliance Statement  

− Townscape and Visual Impact Assessment  

− Statement of Community Involvement 

− Sustainability Strategy, including Water Consumption  

− Energy Strategy  

− Noise Impact Assessment  

− Air Quality Assessment  

− Health Impact Assessment  

− External Lighting Report  

− Ground Investigation Report  

− Transport Assessment  

− Framework Travel Plan  

− Utilities Report  

− Drainage Strategy Report  

− Tree Survey  

− Arboricultural Impact Assessment  

− Tree Management Plan  

− Ecological Impact Assessment  

− Biodiversity Impact Assessment 

− Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey  

− Other species specific surveys identified as necessary by the Phase 1 

Habitat Survey  

− Public Art Strategy  

− Security Needs 

 

3.11 The application has been subject to two presentations to the 

Cambridgeshire Quality Panel. The Panel’s comments can be found in 

section 6, with an assessment of their comments within the body of the 

report.  

 

Page 9



3.12 The evolution of the scheme is described in section 5 of the Design and 

Access Statement. 

 

4.0 Relevant Site History 

4.1 There is no relevant planning history for the site. 

 

5.0 Policy 

National  

National Planning Policy Framework 2021 

National Planning Practice Guidance  

National Design Guide 2021 

Environment Act 2021 

Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 

Regulations 2017. 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

Equalities Act 2010 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

Local Transport Note 1/20 (LTN 1/20) Cycle Infrastructure Design 

ODPM Circular 06/2005 – Protected Species 

Circular 11/95 (Conditions, Annex A) 

Cambridge Local Plan 2018  

Policy 1: The presumption in favour of sustainable development  

Policy 2: Spatial strategy for the location of employment development  

Policy 5: Sustainable transport and infrastructure 

Policy 8: Setting of the City  

Policy 14: Areas of Major Change and Opportunity Areas  

Policy 15: Cambridge Northern Fringe East and new railway Station Area 

Policy 28: Sustainable design and construction, and water use 

Policy 31: Integrated water management and the water cycle  

Policy 32: Flood risk  

Policy 33: Contaminated land  

Policy 34: Light pollution control  

Policy 35: Human health and quality of life  

Policy 36: Air quality, odour and dust  

Policy 55: Responding to context  

Policy 56: Creating successful places  

Policy 57: Designing new buildings  

Page 10



Policy 59: Designing landscape and the public realm  

Policy 60: Tall buildings and the skyline in Cambridge  

Policy 70: Protection of priority species and habitats  

Policy 71: Trees 

Policy 80: Supporting sustainable access to development  

Policy 81: Mitigating the transport impact of development  

Policy 82: Parking management  

Policy 85: Infrastructure delivery, planning obligations and the Community 

                 Infrastructure Levy 

Supplementary Planning Documents 

Biodiversity SPD – Adopted February 2022 

Landscape in New Developments SPD – Adopted March 2010 

Open Space SPD – Adopted January 2009 

Public Art SPD – Adopted January 2009 

Sustainable Design and Construction SPD – Adopted January 2020 

Trees and Development Sites SPD – Adopted January 2009 

Other material planning considerations  

Cambridge Air Quality Action Plan 

Cambridgeshire Green Infrastructure Strategy 

RECAP Waste Management Design Guide 

  

5.1 Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council are 

jointly preparing an Area Action Plan (AAP) for Northeast Cambridge 

(NEC). The wider Northeast Cambridge site is located in one of the last 

remaining significant brownfield sites in Greater Cambridge.  

 

5.2 It has long been an ambition of the local councils to take advantage of the 

opportunity this site affords to regenerate this part of the city and to 

support the continued economic success of the local economy. 

 

5.3 The area proposed to be covered by the AAP is shown in Appendix 1. 

AAP Background  

5.4 Policy 15 (Cambridge Northern Fringe East and new railway Station Area 

of Major Change) of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018 has allocated the 

area for high quality mixed use development, primarily for employment 

uses such as B1, B2 and B8, as well as a range of supporting commercial, 

retail, leisure and residential uses (subject to acceptable environmental 

conditions).  

Page 11



 

5.5 The local plans do not specify the amount of development, site capacities, 

or timescales for development, deferring such matters to the preparation 

of the joint AAP. This is because the planning of the area is dependent on 

the relocation of the Cambridge Water Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(CWWTP) which has been determined as a Nationally Significant 

Infrastructure Project (NSIP) which requires Anglian Water to submit a 

Development Consent Order (DCO) application to the Planning 

Inspectorate (PINS).  

 

5.6 A DCO application has now been submitted to and accepted for 

examination by the Planning Inspectorate. The preliminary meeting has 

been confirmed as taking place on 17th October 2023 

 

5.7 Since the local plans were adopted, the City Council as landowner, in 

partnership with Anglian Water as owners of the CWWTP, has sought to 

secure funding, through the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF), to relocate 

the CWWTP. 

 

5.8 Once the CWWTP site is vacated, together with land around the new 

Cambridge North station, the Cambridge Business Park, St John’s 

Innovation Park, the Cambridge Science Park and other land, will provide 

the opportunity for the creation of a new urban quarter to the city which 

can make a significant contribution to the future housing and employment 

needs of Greater Cambridge.  

 

5.9 In recognition of this opportunity, the councils are preparing a joint AAP to 

guide the type, mix and location of development, ensuring this is 

coordinated, manages transport requirements, and delivers on a shared 

future vision of the place.  

 

5.10 The councils recognise that the component parts of the NEC area will be 

developed out separately and at different times, potentially several years 

apart. While the councils wish to see early delivery on NEC, the councils 

also consider that it is important that the ambition in the adopted Local 

Plan for comprehensive mixed use development is achieved.   

AAP Stage Reached  

5.11 The AAP has already been the subject of three rounds of public 

consultation and has been refined at each stage having regard to matters 

raised by respondents.  In addition, a full suite of evidence and topic 

papers has been prepared:  

 

Page 12



Issues and Options – 8th December 2014 – 2nd February 2015 

Issues and Options – 11th February – 25th March 2019   

Draft Area Action Plan– 27th July – 5th October 2020  

 

5.12 A Proposed Submission AAP was prepared and reported to the councils 

(South Cambridgeshire District Council Cabinet 10th January 2022, 

Cambridge City Council Planning and Transport Scrutiny Committee 11th 

January 2022), where the Proposed Submission AAP was considered and 

agreed for future public consultation.  This next stage is contingent upon 

the separate DCO being concluded. 

 

5.13 Both councils therefore fully endorse the AAP vision, strategic objectives, 

spatial strategy, and policies. However, the proposals within the Proposed 

Submission AAP are predicated upon the WWTP being relocated – and 

therefore contingent on the DCO for the relocation of WWTP being 

approved by the Secretary of State for the Department of Environment, 

Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA). 

 

5.14 Until the DCO process is concluded, and the relocation project authorised 

to commence, the AAP process is paused. 

AAP Status  

5.15 The Proposed Submission AAP has not been the subject of publication 

and consultation, it therefore currently attracts “limited” (i.e. little) weight as 

a material consideration in planning decision making and advice. 

AAP Evidence Base  

5.16 A full suite of evidence base studies has nevertheless been prepared for 

the AAP. These have been reported to the relevant committees of the 

councils alongside the Proposed Submission AAP and are published on 

the councils’ shared planning webpages.  

 

North East Cambridge AAP Document Library 

(greatercambridgeplanning.org). 

 

5.17 These studies are considered to provide evidence of the existing context 

of NEC and its surrounds.  The evidence base provides background 

information and the Councils’ direction of travel and as such the 

documents may be a relevant consideration which attracts weight if and to 

the extent that it is material to the application of adopted development plan 

policies. 

 

Page 13

https://greatercambridgeplanning.org/emerging-plans-and-guidance/north-east-cambridge-area-action-plan/north-east-cambridge-aap-document-library/
https://greatercambridgeplanning.org/emerging-plans-and-guidance/north-east-cambridge-area-action-plan/north-east-cambridge-aap-document-library/
https://greatercambridgeplanning.org/emerging-plans-and-guidance/north-east-cambridge-area-action-plan/north-east-cambridge-aap-document-library/
https://greatercambridgeplanning.org/emerging-plans-and-guidance/north-east-cambridge-area-action-plan/north-east-cambridge-aap-document-library/


Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations (EIA) 

 

5.18 The application proposals fall within Schedule 2, Class 10 (b) ‘Urban 

Development Projects’ of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 

Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 (‘The Regulations’).  

 

5.19 Schedule 2 of the Regulations describes certain types of development 

where EIA may be required if the development has the potential likelihood 

to give rise to ‘significant’ environmental effects, and the thresholds in 

Schedule 2 are met.  The proposed development does not meet any of the 

schedule thresholds or criteria set out in Schedule 2.   

 

5.20 Accordingly, it is not necessary to screen the development proposals, as 

they are below the exclusion thresholds set out in Schedule 2, and the site 

is not within a sensitive area. 

 

5.21 Notwithstanding this position, since the application was originally 

submitted, officers note that circumstances have changed, and new 

evidence has emerged relating to ground water abstraction and potential 

impact on water resources. Officers maintain the view that, given the scale 

of the development proposed, the development proposals would not 

constitute EIA development, and an Environmental Statement (ES) is not 

required to be submitted. 

6.0 Consultations  

Consultation Responses  

Cambridgeshire Quality Panel Meeting of 11 April 2022 

 

6.1 A review of the initial proposals was undertaken by the Cambridgeshire 

Quality Panel on 11th April 2022.    

 

6.2 A copy of the Panel’s report can be found at Appendix 2; however the 

comments are summarised below: 

 

Connectivity 

 

6.3 The Panel regretted the inability for any party to resolve the serious issues 

arising from the 5-way junction with Milton Road. The Panel was unable to 

comment in any detail on the sustainable transport plan, as no modal 

Page 14



share data was presented. The Panel also questioned the need for a car 

park at all as the site is very well connected with the Cambridgeshire 

Guided Bus and the nearby North Cambridge railway station. 

 

Climate  

 

6.4 The climate ambition was supported by the Panel, and they were pleased 

to see the emphasis on passive design and initial embodied carbon 

calculations. They suggested whole life carbon performance is measured 

on an ongoing basis, aiming higher than national standards. The Panel 

was very concerned about the fully glazed top floor prow which is likely to 

have serious overheating issues and similarly for the fully glazed atrium on 

the east side. The Panel urged the applicant to model this to design out 

potential overheating. 

 

Character 

 

6.5 The elevations are wrapped rounded the corners to avoid trees but the 

building misses having a front and a back. The Milton Road façade would 

benefit from having a calm urban expression as the back of the building. 

The landscape is not integrated as an integral part of this scheme; it is a 

very basic proposal and despite its boundary constraints, the landscape is 

only seen on the ‘leftover’ spaces instead of being fully integrated. The 

starting point should be what the landscape can do for the scheme, and 

not be an afterthought. How the building elevations work in the context of 

the mature trees as well as the proposed tree planting should be 

considered. Retained trees should be kept in good condition and a 

management plan for them should be put in place. 

 

Community 

 

6.6 The Panel were concerned about what mixed use facilities there would be 

in northeast Cambridge in the absence of a current plan for the entire site 

to create a vibrant community. If the place is too sterile, it would be difficult 

to attract and retain staff. Social interactions around informal meetings are 

crucial and suggestions about how the internal layout is configured were 

made. This could help inform the design of the façade. 

Cambridgeshire Quality Panel Meeting of 27th June 2022  

  

6.7 A subsequent review of the revisions to the proposals was undertaken by 

the Cambridgeshire Quality Panel on 27th June 2022. 

 

Page 15



6.8 A copy of the Panel’s report can be found at Appendix 3; however the 

comments are summarised below:   

 

Character 

  

6.9 The Panel was very concerned with the massing of the building and 

highlighted the lack of space around the building, the buildable area of the 

plot has been maximised and therefore the quality of the space around its 

perimeter is too restricted and lacks civic generosity. 

 

6.10 As a result of the large footprint of the building, which is too big for the plot 

in the opinion of the Panel, the public realm has been relegated in its 

importance and good external social spaces are lacking. However, the 

pocket garden on the southern corner will not work as intended. The Panel 

suggests this area be dedicated to supporting biodiversity 

 

Connectivity 

 

6.11 Plans do not show any off-site works for access and therefore questions of 

what Cowley Road would look like, where crossing points will be located 

and what is the provision for cycling and walking, were raised. Without any 

improvements, how the site will achieve a 43% cycle mode share? 

 

6.12 Improvements to the Cowley Road junction were suggested. It is important 

to understand where people and staff are coming from and how the 

scheme can help with the last 100m of the cycling and walking journey and 

how these will work in the future. Consider what walking and cycling 

journeys from the station will be like from day one, before the rest of 

Cambridge North is developed, and other connections are made.    

  

Climate  

 

6.13 The Panel commended the applicant on the amount of work and 

measurement done on all sustainable aspects of the scheme, especially 

on the embodied carbon for the materials. They were surprised by 

terracotta being a lower embodied carbon material compared to some 

other more traditional façade materials, so welcomed its inclusion.  

 

6.14 The Panel was pleased that the elevations recognise their orientation and 

change as the building goes round. The Panel were pleased to see the 

science behind treating the different orientation of the building but were 

unsure whether the southern glazed prow, has sufficient overhang to 

provide adequate shading. 

 

Page 16



Community 

  

6.15 For the café to work on the northeast corner, there should be a pedestrian 

and cycle crossing, and it should be visible and clear how this is accessed. 

There is a danger the entrance will be lost behind trees when viewed from 

further away. If the intention is to attract the general public into the café, 

for example people with buggies, the route must be safe, accessible, and 

pleasant. 

 

Consultee comment 

Milton Parish Council 

 

6.16 Object 

 

6.17 Comments in full – 

 

• Overdevelopment of a teardrop site in relation to height being 7 floors 

and impact of the size of the proposed building to cover 13,096 sqm.  

• Insufficient allocated parking for proposed staff members and concerns 

of displacement parking in Milton.  

• The proposal does not comply with the Northeast Action Plan in 

relation to housing lead development.  

• Prefer to maintain more trees and supply more green space 

City Council Ecology 

6.18 No objection 

City Council Environmental Health 

6.20  No objection subject to planning conditions – 

• material management plan 

• unexpected contamination 

• construction hours 

• construction/demolition noise/vibration & piling 

• dust   

 

 

Page 17



City Council Trees 

6.19 Object. The development necessitates the loss of 34 of the site's trees, 

including the majority that green Cowley Road and a significant number 

than contribute to the verdant character of Milton Road. 

 

6.20 In addition to this impact, the pruning of retained trees will be required to 

accommodate construction and then to maintain a reasonable clearance 

to the building. 

  

6.21 Remedial works required to create a suitable construction clearance for a 

building of this scale are expected to have an additional detrimental 

impact. 

  

6.22 The height and mass of the building will also alter how retained trees 

receive sunlight, further increasing the possibility of a decline in health. 

  

6.23 Given the scale of the proposed building and associated facilities there is 

limited scope for replacement planting, especially with trees of stature at 

maturity. 

  

6.24 The visual relationship between retained trees and the site's building will 

alter dramatically given the significant increase in height and footprint with 

the new building, dwarfing existing trees. 

 

GCP Landscape 

6.25 Does not support.  The proposed building does not respond positively to 

its local context by way of its overbearing presence on existing landscape 

and nearby streets. Does not create well integrated, contextual public 

realm and buildings which enhance the townscape. Poor integration of the 

building on the site and the externalisation of cycle storage. 

 

Page 18



6.26 High quality external public and private space have not been achieved 

within the proposals, and natural features are not successfully integrated 

into the overall design. 

 

6.27 The proposals do not achieve the appropriate balance of height, scale or 

mass for this site. 

GCP Sustainability 

No objections subject to planning conditions requiring  

 

• BREEAM 'Excellent' Design Stage Certification 

• BREEAM 'Excellent' Post Construction Certification, and 

• Renewables 10% Details Compliance 

GCP Urban Design 

6.28 Does not support.  The scale and massing of the proposed building is 

considered excessive for the site, leaving limited space for landscaping 

and the creation of a high-quality public ream, resulting in the over-

development of the plot.  

 

6.29 The architectural composition is unresolved, resulting in an unremarkable 

building with an unbalanced appearance. 

  

6.30 It is considered that the proposed development would constitute an 

incongruous form of overdevelopment and fail to provide a landmark 

building for this highly prominent location. 

  

6.31 Accordingly, it would conflict with Policies 55, 56, 56 and 60 of the 

Cambridge Local Plan (2018) and Section 12 of the NPPF, which seek to 

ensure that new development responds positively to its context and draws 

inspiration from the key characteristics of its surroundings to help create 

distinctive and high-quality places. 

 

  

Page 19



6.32 It would also fail to meet the high-quality design expectations for this 

prominent site as required by the NECAAP. 

Cambridge Airport 

6.33 No objection subject to a suggested Bird Hazard Management Plan 

Cambridgeshire Constabulary 

6.33  No objection, suggests that the applicant seeks secure by design 

accreditation 

Cambridgeshire County Council Lead Local Flood Authority 

6.34 No objection, subject to planning conditions requiring a detailed surface 

water drainage scheme, and a scheme to manage surface water while 

construction takes place 

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Development Management  

6.35 No objections subject to planning conditions requiring 2m x 2m visibility 

splays, paved areas to be constructed so that no private water from the 

site drains across or onto the adopted public highway, a Traffic 

Management Plan (separate from any submitted Construction 

management plan), and a condition requiring kerbs to be reinstated.  

Cambridgeshire County Council Transport Assessment Team 

6.36 No objection subject to mitigation package, including the following 

obligations and conditions are required to make the development 

acceptable in planning terms. 

 

6.37 A contribution towards strategic transport infrastructure.  

 

6.38 To implement a new pedestrian / cycle crossing over Cowley Road and to 

widen the footway – to be secured by planning condition. 

 

6.39 A contribution for additional parking restrictions in the surrounding area - 

to be secured by s106 agreement. 

 

Page 20



6.40 A contribution for Travel Plan management and monitoring - to be secured 

by s106 agreement 

 

6.41 Car Park Management Plan - to be secured by planning condition. 

 

6.42 Travel Plan - to be secured by planning condition.  

Anglian Water 

6.36  No objection, subject to a suggested surface water drainage planning 

condition 

Cadent Gas 

6.37  No objection 

Environment Agency 

6.38  No comments received 

Fire Service 

6.39  No objection, subject to planning condition requiring details of fire hydrants 

 

7.0 Third party representations have been 

7.1 Third party representations submitted by the developer of the adjacent 

Hartree land (LandsecU+I and TOWN). They have not objected to the 

proposed scheme but have commented on the wider infrastructure 

required to support the vision set out in the emerging NECAAP and the 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) (December 2021) that has been 

prepared.  

 

7.2 The IDP identifies what strategic infrastructure interventions will be 

required to support the level of growth anticipated, and the estimated cost 

and timescale of delivery, in order to ensure that each developer pays a 

fair and equitable proportion of those costs.  

 

7.3 The representation wishes it to be recognised that it would be neither 

reasonable nor equitable to expect remaining sites/developments in the 

NECAAP area (such as Hartree) to meet the IDP funding deficits arising 

Page 21



from these earlier developments in addition to their own planning 

contributions at the time their applications come forward. 

8.0 Local Interest Groups and Organisations 

8.1 Cambridge Past Present and Future has made a representation objecting 

to the application on the following grounds:  

 

- Bulk and mass of the development  

-Visual impact on Milton Road  

-Size of the building’s footprint in relation to plot size   

-Overdevelopment   

-Potential tree impacts 

 

8.2 The above is a summary of the comments that have been received. Full 

details of the representations are available on the Council’s website.  

9.0 Planning Background  

9.1 Policy 15 of the Cambridge Local Plan sets out the proposed development 

approach for Cambridge Northern Fringe East and Cambridge North 

railway station. The policy advises that the amount of development, site 

capacity, time scales and phasing of development will be established 

through the preparation of an Area Action Plan (AAP). 

  

9.2 The application site is located within the Northeast Cambridge Area Action 

Plan (NECAAP) area.  

 

9.3 The policy sets out criteria for development proposals including that they 

do not compromise opportunities for the redevelopment of the wider area. 

Paragraph 3.31 of the supporting text states; “planning applications 

submitted before the adoption of the AAP will be considered on their own 

merits and subject to ensuring that they would not prejudice the outcome 

of the AAP process and the achievement of the comprehensive vision for 

the area as a whole that will be established by the AAP.” 

 

9.4 Paragraphs 47-50 of the NPPF set out the following points regarding the 

status of emerging plans with respect to decision making.  

 

9.5 Local planning authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging 

plans according to the stage of preparation (the more advanced, the 

greater the weight), the extent to which there are unresolved objections to 

Page 22



relevant policies, and the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in 

the emerging plan to the NPPF. 

  

9.6 In the context of the objective of sustainable development, arguments that 

an application is premature are unlikely to justify a refusal of planning 

permission other than in limited circumstances where both the 

development proposed is so substantial, or its cumulative effect would be 

so significant, that to grant planning permission would undermine the plan-

making process by predetermining decisions about the scale, location or 

phasing of new development that are central to the emerging plan and the 

emerging plan is at an advanced stage but is not yet formally part of the 

development plan for the area. 

 

9.7 It is considered that the proposed development is not of a such significant 

scale which, if granted, would undermine the plan making process. 

10.0 Assessment 

10.1 From the consultation responses and representations received and from 

an inspection of the site and the surroundings, the key issues are: 

 

• Principle of development  

• Character and Appearance 

• Landscape and Trees 

• Transport and Access 

• Construction and Environmental Impacts 

• Biodiversity  

• Carbon reduction and sustainable design  

• Character and Appearance  

• Flood Risk and Drainage 

• Utilities  

• Third party representations 

11.0 Principle of Development 

11.1 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that decisions should apply a 

presumption in favour of sustainable development. For decision-

taking this means approving development proposals that accord with an 

up-to-date development plan without delay subject to assessing whether 

any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 

taken as a whole. 

 

Page 23



11.2 Policy 2 (Spatial strategy for the location of employment development) of 

the Cambridge Local Plan 2018 states that the overall development 

strategy is to focus the majority of employment development on the 

following -  

 

i) the urban area,  

ii) Areas of Major Change, 

iii) Opportunity Areas, and  

iv) the city centre. 

 

11.3 Policy 14 (Areas of Major Change) states that development within these 

areas should be of the highest quality design and incorporate the 

principles of sustainable design and construction, and should only be 

permitted when the necessary infrastructure and associated arrangements 

to support that development have been secured or where an assessment 

shows that a particular development can take place in advance of such 

provision without causing unacceptable impacts. 

 

11.4 The site is located within a designated Area of Major Change, defined in 

Policy 15 (Cambridge Northern Fringe East and new railway Station Area 

of Major Change) and show in Figure 3.3 of the Local Plan. 

 

11.5 Policy 15 states that “Cambridge Northern Fringe East and the new 

railway station will enable the creation of a revitalised, employment 

focussed area centred on a new transport interchange” and allocates the 

land for “high quality mixed-use development, primarily for employment 

uses such as B1, B2 and B8, as well as a range of supporting commercial, 

retail, leisure and residential uses…”.  

 

11.6 Policy 15 also states that all proposals should: 

 

a) take into account existing site conditions and environmental and 

safety constraints;  

b) demonstrate that environmental and health impacts (including 

odour) from the Cambridge Water Recycling Centre can be 

acceptably mitigated for occupants;  

c) ensure that appropriate access and linkages, including for 

pedestrians and cyclists, are planned for in a high quality and 

comprehensive manner;  

d) where development is proposed, provide for appropriate ecological 

mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures either on- or 

off-site; and  

e) ensure that due consideration has been given to safeguarding the 

appropriate future development of the wider site. 

Page 24



 

11.7 Sections of Policy 14 and 15 that are relevant to this particular site will be 

addressed throughout the report. 

 

11.8 The proposed development is for a research and development facility 

providing for flexible multi-tenant space. A shared café, which would also 

be open to the public, and seminar space will be provided on the ground 

floor.  

 

11.9 It is considered that the proposed land uses accord with that as set out in 

Policy 15.  

 

11.10 The proposals will result in the creation of a significant number of new 

jobs, with the current proposals likely to create direct employment of 

approximately 800 full time equivalent jobs, once operational. It is also 

anticipated that approximately 200 jobs are likely to be created through the 

construction stage, which the applicant states are likely to include 

opportunities for apprenticeships.  

 

Summary 

 

11.11 It is considered that the principle of the development is acceptable and in 

accordance with policies 14 and 15 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018. 

12.0 Character and appearance 

Introduction 

12.1 Paragraphs 126, 130 and 131 of the NPPF advise that developments 

should aim to achieve well-designed, sustainable places that function 

well, are visually attractive, create a strong sense of plans and optimise 

the potential of the site.  

 

12.2 Policies 8 (Setting of the City), 55 (Responding to context), 56 (Creating 

successful places), 57 (Designing new buildings), 59 (Designing 

landscape and the public realm) and 60 (Tall buildings and the skyline in 

Cambridge) seek to ensure that development responds appropriately to 

its context, is of a high quality, reflects or successfully contrasts with 

existing building forms and materials and includes appropriate 

landscaping and boundary treatment.   

 

12.3 The applicant has submitted a Design and Access statement to explain 

the approach to the design of the building and the rest of the site. A 

Page 25



Townscape and Visual Impact Assessment (TVIA) has also been 

submitted to identify significant potential effects on the townscape fabric, 

townscape character and effects on visual amenity. 

 

12.4 The TVIA describes the site as one situated within an extensively 

modified and changing townscape setting, and goes onto describe the 

townscape as one that is considered to be sufficient in scale to 

accommodate a development of the scale proposed. 

 

12.5 Future wider changes in the local townscape are anticipated through the 

emerging context of the Northeast Cambridge Area Action Plan. The 

proposed development is considered to reflect the ambition for the 

transformation of this part of the city.  

 

12.6 These changes include the already approved scheme for the 

redevelopment of part of St John’s Innovation Park immediately to the 

north of the site. 

Layout, Scale and Massing 

12.7 The site is constrained by its shape, size and surrounding roads. The 

proposed footprint of the building is wider at the northern end and 

narrows to a point on its southern elevation. This is considered 

acceptable and addresses the site’s constraints. 

 

12.8 The proposed building will be mostly 6 storeys high with a 7th storey 

lantern feature to the south. There will be no basement. The height of the 

main part of the building will be 24.36m high, with the upper roof and 

lantern feature being 30.55m high. The flues extend this height by a 

further 3.5 metres. 

 

12.9 The site presents an important edge to Milton Road, one that is identified 

in the NECAAP as being of a suitable scale at a maximum height of 31m. 

It is also identified as being suitable for a ‘landmark building.’ 

 

12.10 To the west, across Milton Road, the existing buildings are lower, at 

approximately 15-20m height. To the east, sites are identified as being 

suitable for development up to 31m. 

 

12.11 Concerns have been raised by the Urban Design officer, including in 

relation to the following layout, scale and massing issues – 

 

Page 26



• Failure to integrate the proposal with the immediate locality and the wider 

city 

 

• Inappropriately scaled built frontages 

 

• Failure to create active edges 

 

• Failure to successfully integrate refuse areas, roof plant, substation areas 

 

• Failure to delivery high quality public realm 

 

• Failure to deliver a high quality addition to the Cambridge skyline  

 

12.12 Notwithstanding the concerns raised by the Urban Design officer, it is 

clear that the scale of the building is in accordance with the aims and 

aspirations expressed in the emerging NEECAP. This building is one 

several buildings to come forward as part of the redevelopment of this 

part of Northeast Cambridge, and follows a similar scale to those built or 

approved and not yet built on the St John’s Innovation Park immediately 

to the north of the site.  The proposed lantern design feature provides an 

accent to the southern corner of the building and creates a distinctive 

element in the local townscape and so provides a landmark element.   

 

12.13 The internal layout and the external appearance of the building has been 

informed by both the internal requirements of lab/ office space and of the 

setting of the site, with ground floor active uses facing onto the quieter 

Cowley Road, and less active uses such as car parking facing out onto 

the much busier Milton Road. This is an appropriate response to the 

site’s characteristics. 

 

12.14 While the proposals mean that a large proportion of the available site is 

taken over by built form, with less land taken over for public realm, it is 

not considered that the site is an appropriate or suitable location for a 

significant area of public realm, located adjacent to Milton Road, one of 

the main thoroughfares into Cambridge.  

 

12.15 In addressing the issues raised by the Quality Panel, in relation to 

character and public realm, the building is on a tight site at the entrance 

to the NEC area. Given the character and intense use of Milton Road to 

the west, it was not considered appropriate to provide significant public 

realm around the building, as it would likely receive little use. 

 

Page 27



12.16 Instead the building will provide a degree of activity and surveillance, and 

the overall scale and landmark quality will address the currently dominant 

Milton Road.  

 

12.17 The proposed building form and scale is part of a new emerging building 

typology for the area, moving away from a generally lower density 

science park to a more urban building form. 

 

12.18 Questions raised by the panel in relation to the detail of the proposed soft 

landscaping plan can be addressed by suitably worded planning 

conditions (Conditions 20 and 21 – Hard and Soft Landscaping). 

 

12.19 Issues raised by the quality panel regarding connectivity and how any 

mechanism for securing off site works to improve public realm and road 

crossings will be achieved by a s106 agreement for a financial 

contribution for transport infrastructure.   

 

12.20 Also, the travel plan for the building demonstrates that 43% cycle mode 

share is achievable.  The proposal will have low car parking numbers (45 

spaces compare to the 300+ spaces that a building of this size would 

attract if Local Plan Parking Standards were maximised) and the site is in 

a highly accessible location with more options for sustainable travel since 

Cambridge North Station opened. 

 

12.21 The General Arrangement Layout Plan – Level 0 (Drawing No: MPC-

HOK-BW-ZZ-DR-T-10101 Rev P01) and figure 3.4 of the Framework 

Travel Plan shows a raised table pedestrian crossing on Cowley Road to 

the east of the scheme which would need to be delivered by the County 

Council through planning condition [Condition 16 – Cycle route 

details]. 

 

12.22 Issues raised in relation to the community aspect of the proposed 

scheme have been addressed by showing more formal tree planting 

around the entrance to the building and café, and this will improve the 

visibility of this active use.  The other planting and retained trees on that 

corner will help to shield the seating area from passing vehicles. 

 

12.23 Other issues relating to the design of refuse areas, roof plant and 

substation can be addressed by appropriately worded planning 

conditions [Condition 5 - Materials].   

 

Summary 

 

Page 28



12.24 Taking into account the changing context of the site and its relationship 

with the wider emerging northeast Cambridge area, this justifies the 

approach to plot coverage, scale and massing for the proposal. As such 

it is considered that the applicants have appropriately addressed the 

issues of layout, character and appearance in the proposed design. 

Subject to conditions, the proposal is in accordance with Local Plan 

policies 8, 55, 56, 57, 59 and 60, and NPPF advice. 

Elevations and materials  

12.25 The building is broken down into three primary elements – the South 

tower with the ‘lantern’ element, the west horizontal lab block and the 

east office block with the entrance colonnade. 

 

12.26 As Milton Road is the main vehicular artery connecting the A14 to the city 

centre, the west façade of the building will be perceived predominantly by 

people in moving vehicles, as they pass by the site.  

 

12.27 The locations of the main entrance and the café respond to the quieter 

eastern elevation, positioned along this edge of the site and 

acknowledging the emerging NECAAP masterplan. 

 

12.28 Concrete vertical and horizontal elements will be employed to the lantern 

on the south, to the colonnade to the entrance and also the car parking 

area at the base of the building.  

 

12.29 Curtain wall glazing is used for the entrance area, the façade elements to 

the lantern and to the recessed circulation areas which separate the two 

main blocks of the building. The roof plant screen will also be a PPC 

aluminium cladding system. 

 

12.30 An office/seminar suite with a surrounding balcony will be located in the 

lantern. External roof plant is positioned to the north, behind the tower, 

behind an external plant screen.  

 

12.31 The applicant has proposed red polyester powder coated aluminium for 

the middle five storeys, with the ground and top storeys having a different 

colour and material treatment. The ground floor comprises masonry walls 

and concrete cladding, together with glazing which establishes a more 

solid ‘plinth’ at the base of the building.  

 

12.32 The setback seventh storey provides a screened plant enclosure with the 

lantern at the southern end of the building, rising up above the plant.  The 

lantern provides a distinctive element to the building created by the 

Page 29



contrast in materials. The proposed flues rise up beyond the general 

massing of the building and are grouped and integrated into the overall 

composition of the building. 

 

12.33 Concerns have been raised by the Urban Design officer, including in 

relation to the following elevation and materials issues – 

 

• Ground floor appears ‘squashed’ 

 

• Level 6 does not seek to minimise the over-dominant plant room 

 

• Competing massing elements result in an unremarkable building with 

compromised detailed design 

 

12.34 The ground floor has been designed purposefully as a ‘plinth’ feature, 

with the first floors and above designed to float above this floor. The 

ground floor elevations facing out onto Milton Road, by virtue of this part 

of the building providing car parking, are intentionally less active.  

 

12.35 Ground floor activity is predominantly located in the north-eastern part of 

the site, and this is considered to be an appropriate location, forming a 

relationship with existing and future buildings on the adjacent St John’s 

Innovation Park.  

 

12.36 The upper parts of the building, comprising the 5 storeys of the building 

that will comprise most of the proposed lab / office space and the lighter 

lantern feature on the top storey, provide a clearly articulated elevational 

treatment without compromising the quality of the overall design. 

  

12.37 The materials to enclose the plant room and its surroundings will be 

secured by an appropriate planning condition [Condition 5 – materials].     

 

12.38 Notwithstanding this, the materials proposed for the building, including 

the important ground floor, the colour of the aluminium panels and other 

materials, will be subject to detailed planning conditions [Condition 5 - 

materials].  This condition will also control the materials to enclose the 

plant floor and for the proposed flues. 

 

Summary 

 

12.39 The proposed elevations and associated materials combine to create a 

striking building that will provide a contrast with existing development 

around it and is consistent with the ongoing regeneration and 

redevelopment of the NEC area.  Taking into account the concerns of the 

Page 30



urban design officer, It is considered that the applicants have 

appropriately addressed the issues of elevations and materials, and 

subject to conditions [Condition 5 - materials], the proposal is in 

accordance with Local Plan policy 57 and NPPF advice. 

13.0 Landscaping and Trees 

13.1 Paragraph 131 of the NPPF advises that existing trees should be 

retained wherever possible. 

 

13.2 Policies 59 (Designing landscape and the public realm) and 71 (Trees) 

seek to preserve, protect and enhance existing trees and hedges that 

have amenity value and contribute to the quality and character of the 

area and provide sufficient space for trees and other vegetation to 

mature.  

 

13.3 Policy 85 (Planning Obligations) seeks to ensure that there are suitable 

arrangements for the improvement or provision and phasing of 

infrastructure, services and facilities necessary to make the scheme 

acceptable in planning terms, including ensuring the provision green 

infrastructure. 

 

13.4 The application is accompanied by a Tree Survey, an Arboricultural 

Impact Assessment (AIA), and a Tree Management Plan.  The AIA 

judges that collectively the existing trees on site provide a significant 

contribution to local canopy cover and its associated ecosystem, but the 

site is poorly connected, and so are not considered to form part of any 

significant Green Infrastructure network.  

 

13.5 As set out in the AIA, the development would result in the loss of 34 trees 

and 1 hedge, and the partial removal of another hedge. The losses 

include 2 of the 14 Category A trees and 8 Category B trees. 

 

13.6 The AIA states that 16 of the trees to be removed are within the main 

development footprint, or so close as to make their retention unfeasible. 

 

13.7 In addition to the removal of trees, works to retained trees will also be 

required including work within root protection zones and pruning of 

retained trees to accommodate construction and then to maintain a 

reasonable clearance to the building.  

 

13.8 The Council’s Tree officer has objected to the proposal, considering that 

the scheme is not in accordance with Policies 59 and 71, which supports 

Page 31



high quality development which demonstrates that existing features 

including trees, natural habitats and boundary treatments that positively 

contribute to the quality and character of an area are retained and 

protected. Furthermore, the remedial works required to retained trees, 

ongoing pruning required, and potential loss of sunlight will all impact on 

the retained trees. 

 

13.9 Although the proposals include the planting of 86 new trees, it is 

considered that the scale of the proposed building and associated 

facilities results in limited scope for replacement planting, especially with 

trees of stature at maturity.  

 

13.10 The visual relationship between the retained trees and the site's building 

will alter dramatically given the significant increase in height and footprint 

with the new building, dwarfing existing trees. This relationship is 

exacerbated by the close proximity of the building to the trees 

 

13.11 The applicant proposes to mitigate the loss through new planting, see 

General Arrangement Plan 22029_L_200 rev D01 and with detail 

secured through planning condition [Conditions 20 and 21 

Landscaping]. 

 

13.12 The applicant has also agreed to a s106 agreement to make a 

contribution towards the Council’s wider green infrastructure aspirations 

to plant additional trees nearby that will contribute to the tree cover and 

provide additional ecological benefit to the wider area. This is considered 

to be a positive outcome, adding to the wider tree coverage in the area 

and contribute to the Council’s wider green infrastructure strategy.  

 

Summary 

 

13.13 After assessing the impact of the loss of mature trees on the site, and 

taking into consideration the proposal for new tree planting nearby as 

well as the proposed new planting on the site, it is considered that 

applicants have appropriately addressed the issues of landscape and 

trees, and subject to conditions and s106 agreement the proposal is in 

accordance with Local Plan policies 59, 71 and 85 as well as NPPF 

advice. 

Page 32



14.0 Transport and Access 

Northeast Cambridge Transport Position Statement 

14.1 A Transport Position Statement (TPS) has been issued by the County 

Council regarding development in Northeast Cambridge. The County’s 

approach is informed by the transport evidence base for the emerging 

NECAAP, including the A10 Study, which establishes that Milton Road is 

already at capacity. 

 

14.2 The studies recommend the application of a vehicle trip budget in 

preference to providing additional highway capacity to accommodate new 

growth. The trip budget works by calculating the existing peak trips 

generated within the area and apportioning these to the individual sites. 

 

14.3 The purpose of the TPS is to ensure that development proposals within 

Northeast Cambridge that come ahead of the NECAAP submission, do 

not prejudice or frustrate the delivery of the strategic transport solution or 

wider development aspirations of the NECAAP area.  

 

14.4 Paragraph 111 of the NPPF advises that development should only be 

prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe.  

 

14.5 Policy 80 (Supporting sustainable access to development) supports 

developments where access via walking, cycling and public transport are 

prioritised and accessible for all.  

 

14.6 Policy 81 (Mitigating the transport impact of development) states that 

developments will only be permitted where they do not have an 

unacceptable transport impact.  

 

14.7 The applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment (TA) and a 

Framework Travel Plan (FTP) to support the proposal.  

Transport Assessment and Framework travel plan 

14.8 The FTP is a tool that sets out the commitment of a development to 

promote travel by sustainable modes. This FTP will be used to help staff 

and visitors make informed choices by providing them with the 

information needed to make that choice. This may be making them 

Page 33



aware of where local bus services go / how much they cost or providing 

information about what facilities are available in the local area, and will 

be managed by a designated Travel Plan co-ordinator. 

 

14.9 Measures proposed within the plan are intended to encourage employees 

to reduce their reliance on single occupancy private car travel. 

 

14.10 The application has been subject to formal consultation with 

Cambridgeshire County Council’s Local Highways Authority and Transport 

Assessment Team, who raise no objection to the proposal subject to a 

mitigation package being agreed. This can be secured through various 

planning conditions and s106 mitigation. [Condition 9 – Traffic 

Management, Condition 10 – Construction Access, Condition 11 – 

Kerb reinstatement, Condition 12 – Visibility Splays, Condition 16 – 

Cowley Road crossing, Condition 17 – Low Emissions Strategy, and 

Condition 18 Travel Plan]. 

 

Summary  

 

14.11 Subject to conditions and S106 mitigation as applicable, the travel plan 

proposals accord with the objectives of policy 80 and 81 of the Local Plan 

and NPPF advice. 

Transport Mitigation 

14.12 The NPPF states that LPAs should consider whether otherwise 

unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use of 

conditions or planning obligations.  

 

14.13 Policy 85 of the Local Plan states that planning permission for new 

developments will only be supported where there are suitable 

arrangements for the improvement or provision and phasing of 

infrastructure, services, and facilities necessary to make the scheme 

acceptable in planning terms. 

 

14.14 The mitigation for the Merlin Place application is focused on the need to 

provide the infrastructure to enable a mode switch from private car to 

cycling and public transport. The highway capacity has reached its 

maximum threshold and the area is dependent on significant internal, 

local, and strategic sustainable transport infrastructure.  

 

14.15 The mitigation requirement from this development will be to facilitate the 

delivery of infrastructure in the vicinity of the site (including infrastructure 

Page 34



schemes promoted by the Greater Cambridge Partnership and Combined 

Authority). 

 

14.16 The Northeast Cambridge Area Action Plan Transport Evidence Base 

report of 20 September 2019 sets out the package of transport 

infrastructure required to unlock growth in the area (tables 55 and 56).  

 

14.17 The developer of the adjacent Hartree site has commented on the 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) which identifies what strategic 

infrastructure interventions will be required to support the level of growth 

anticipated, commenting that each developer should pay a fair and 

equitable proportion of those costs.  

 

14.18 While noting their comments, appropriate transport mitigation for this 

scheme will be secured through either planning condition or s106 

contribution.  

Access 

14.19 The single point of vehicular access is proposed towards the southern end 

of the site on Cowley Road. This will be a shared access for goods and 

car park entry/exit. The existing vehicular access point will be removed. 

 

14.20 The access has been tracked for a large car, a 10.595m refuse vehicle, 

and a 10m rigid vehicle - the largest service vehicle expected to deliver to 

the site. All vehicle tracking demonstrates this access is adequate. 

 

14.21 A shared footway / cycle way (the Waterbeach Greenway) is being 

proposed along the eastern side of Cowley Road, providing a safe, direct 

route from the north.  

 

Summary 

 

14.22 The access proposals are acceptable and accord with the objectives of 

policy 80 and 81 of the Local Plan and NPPF advice. 

Cycle and Car Parking Provision   

Cycle Parking 

14.23 The Cambridge Local Plan (2018) supports development which 

encourages and prioritises sustainable transport, such as walking, cycling 

and public transport. 

Page 35



14.24 Policy 82 (Parking management) of the Local Plan requires new 

developments to comply with the cycle parking standards as set out within 

appendix L.  

 

14.25 Included in the TA is an assessment of the bike and car parking 

requirements to support and encourage sustainable transport to the site.  

 

14.26 A total of 313 cycle spaces will be provided for the development. These 

will be located at ground level. 248 of these will be ‘double-stacked’ 

spaces located within external, secure pavilions. 10 Sheffield spaces and 

15 cargo cycle spaces will be located internally, and a further 40 Sheffield 

spaces located within the public realm as short stay places. 

 

14.27 The proposed cycle parking will be monitored for take up, and a condition 

will be required to ensure that, should cycle demand exceed the current 

proposals, then the current proposals will be subject to review and 

upgrade [Condition 15 – Cycle parking provision]. 

 

14.28 A cycle workshop/maintenance area will be included within the internal 

cycle store. Cyclists will have direct access to the parking spaces at 

ground level. From here, users will access changing, shower and locker 

facilities on Level 1, via an adjacent stair.  

 

Total parking spaces: 313 

2-tier spaces: 248 - 79% of total 

Cargo bicycle spaces: 15 - 5% of total Sheffield spaces: 46 - 16% of total  

Showers: 14 + 1 Accessible shower  

Lockers: 76 

Car parking  

14.29 Policy 82 (Parking management) of the Cambridge Local Plan (2018) 

requires new developments to comply with, and not exceed, the maximum 

car parking standards as set out within appendix L.  

 

14.30 The TA states that 45 car parking spaces will be provided, including 2 

spaces for accessible users and an additional 6 spaces for motorcyclists. 

 

14.31 This will be a significant reduction from the existing number of parking 

spaces on site (93), leading to fewer car trips, in line with the 

recommendations of the NEC AAP. 

 

Page 36



14.32 Approximately 50% of car parking spaces will be fitted with active electric 

vehicle charging infrastructure, with the rest of the spaces having passive 

provision, meaning that wiring and ducting will be in place to allow for the 

future installation of additional charging points (Condition 17 – low 

emissions strategy). 

 

14.33 After entering the site from the single access off Cowley Road, cars will 

enter into an open-sided under-croft car park.  

 

14.34 Car parking has been intentionally positioned along the Milton Road part 

of the building, which has less pedestrian activity and is a less active 

edge. The existing topography to this side of the site provides some 

natural screening with the building set slightly lower than the surrounding 

ground. 

 

14.35 Existing trees and proposed additional defensive planting and hedgerow 

along Milton Road will also provide additional screening to this side of the 

building. 

 

Summary 

 

14.36 The cycle and car parking proposals accord with the objectives of policy 

82 of the Local Plan and NPPF advice. 

15.0 Construction and Environmental Impacts  

15.1 Paragraph 185 of the NPPF advises that planning decisions should aim to 

avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality 

of life resulting from new development, as well as limiting the impact of 

light pollution on local amenity.  

 

15.2 Paragraph 186 of the NPPF advises that opportunities to improve air 

quality should be identified, such as through traffic and travel 

management.  

 

15.3 Policy 33 (Contaminated land) states that development will be permitted 

where it is demonstrated that there will be no adverse health impacts to 

future occupiers from ground contamination resulting from 

existing/previous uses of the area. 

 

15.4 Policy 34 (Light pollution control) states that development proposals that 

include new external lighting or changes to existing external lighting will be 

permitted where it can be demonstrated that, amongst other things, 

Page 37



upwards or intrusive light spillage is minimised particularly at sites on the 

edge of Cambridge. 

 

15.5 Policy 35 (Human health and quality of life) states that development will be 

permitted where it is demonstrated that it will not lead to significant 

adverse effects and impacts on health and quality of life / amenity from 

noise and vibration.  

 

15.6 Policy 36 (Air quality, odour and dust) states that development will be 

permitted where it is demonstrated that it will not lead to significant 

adverse effects and impacts on health or amenity from noise and vibration.  

Air quality 

15.7 The application is supported by an Air Quality Assessment. 

 

15.8 The report sets out the potential air quality impacts associated with both 

the construction and operation of the proposed development.  

 

15.9 The report recommends that a Dust Management Plan is secured by 

planning condition. This is agreed as part of as wider Construction and 

Environment Management Plan [Condition 3 – Demolition and 

Construction Management Plan]. 

 

15.10 The proposed energy strategy for the operational use of the building is for 

all electric, which will have zero emissions, and will therefore generate no 

significant local air quality impacts. 

Land contamination 

15.11 The application is supported by a Ground Investigation Report.  

 

15.12 No land contamination concerns have been identified, but a standard 

contamination condition will be added should unexpected contamination 

be found [Condition 30 – Unexpected Contaminated Land]. 

Lighting 

15.13 The application is supported by an External Lighting Report. The report 

sets out the potential lighting impacts associated with both the 

construction and operation of the proposed development.  

 

15.14 It is not anticipated that there will be any significant lighting effects from 

the proposed development of from the surroundings on future users of the 

Page 38



proposal, but for clarity, lighting of the site will be controlled by planning 

condition [Condition 26 - Lighting]. 

Noise and vibration 

15.15 The application is supported by a Ground Investigation Report.  The report 

sets out the potential noise and vibration impacts associated with both the 

construction and operation of the proposed development. 

 

15.16 It is not anticipated that there will be any significant noise and vibration 

effects from the proposed development of from the surroundings on future 

users of the proposal. 

16.0 Biodiversity 

16.1 Para 174 of the NPPF advises that decisions should contribute to and 

enhance the natural and local environment by providing net gains for 

biodiversity. 

 

16.2 The Environment Act 2021 and the Councils’ Biodiversity SPD (2022) 

require development proposals to deliver a net gain in biodiversity 

following a mitigation hierarchy which is focused on avoiding ecological 

harm over minimising, rectifying, reducing and then off-setting.  

 

16.3 Policy 70 (Protection of priority species and habitats) states that proposals 

that harm or disturb populations and habitats should secure achievable 

mitigation and / or compensatory measures resulting in either no net loss 

or a net gain of priority habitat and local populations of priority species.  

 

16.4 The applicant has submitted an Ecological Impact Assessment to support 

the application.   

 

16.5 The key findings of this assessment are that the following protected and 

priority species are either present or could be potentially present on site: 

 

• Bats that may commute along the hedgerows and treelines; 

• Nesting birds that could use the hedgerows, shrubs and mature 

trees and were seen nesting on a building ledge; 

• Hedgehogs and rabbits that could utilise the site for resting and 

foraging; 

• Orchids were noted within the neutral grassland, there is the 

potential for other plant species of botanical interest. 

Page 39



• There are negligible opportunities for other protected or priority 

species. 

 

16.6 The assessment recommends the following measures to avoid and/or 

reduce impacts: 

 

• Retention of the grassland due to the presence of orchids, or the 

translocation of the orchids; 

• Habitat creation to improve the biodiversity value of the site; 

• Implementation of a sensitive lighting scheme to avoid disturbing 

bats; 

• Vegetation clearance undertaken outside of the nesting bird season 

(March to August inclusive) or be preceded by a check from a 

suitably experienced ecologist; 

• The completion of a biodiversity impact metric and assessment to 

establish the development’s impact in relation to biodiversity and to 

demonstrate how a net gain in biodiversity will be achieved in line 

with planning policy (see information below regarding this). 

 

16.7 A Biodiversity Impact Assessment was submitted with the application. This 

stated that there will be a Biodiversity Net Gain (‘BNG’) increase of 17.4%. 

 

16.8 This proposed increase has been achieved through the proposed removal 

and replacement of species poor hedgerow, replacement trees, and the 

proposal to lay an ‘intensive green roof’ on both the main building and the 

outbuildings.  

 

16.9 The applicant is proposing to provide ecological enhancements in the form 

of bat boxes, bird boxes and nest boxes. 

 

16.10 The City Council’s nature conservation officer is content with the Ecology 

Impact Assessment and recommendations but is not convinced that the 

prediction of 17.4% BNG is achievable, and requests that the condition of 

these habitats be revised to reflect the influence of trees and establish if a 

minimum 10% BNG is still achievable.  

 

16.11 The applicant has suggested that the mechanism to ensure that the 

anticipated BNG is secured is through a Management and Monitoring Plan 

to be conditioned, and this is agreed [Condition 25 – Construction 

Ecological Management Plan]. Some of the habitat types, such as formal 

landscaping, will be secured by a Landscape and Ecology Management 

Plan (LEMP) [Condition 27 – LEMP]. 

 

Page 40



16.12 A s106 agreement has been agreed with the applicant to ensure that 

additional tree and other planting will take place nearby to help address 

the aims and objectives of the Cambridge Green Infrastructure Strategy.  

 

Summary 

 

16.13 Based on the information submitted, officers are satisfied that subject to 

conditions, the proposed development can achieve at least 10% BNG, and 

together with proposals to provide additional tree and other planting 

nearby, it is considered that the proposal is compliant with Policy 70 of the 

Cambridge Local Plan (2018) and the NPPF.  

17.0 Carbon Reduction and Sustainable Design  

17.1  Paragraph 152 of the NPPF advises that the planning system should 

support the transition to a low carbon future in a changing climate. 

 

17.2 Policy 28 (Sustainable design and construction, and water use) states that 

all development should take the available opportunities to integrate the 

principles of sustainable design and construction into the design of 

proposals. This should include climate change adaptation, carbon 

reduction and water management.  

 

17.3 The same policy requires non-residential buildings to introduce high levels 

of water efficiency in new developments in order to respond to the water 

stress facing Cambridge, including full credits for Wat 01 of BREEAM.  

 

17.4 The Council’s Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (2020) sets out a 

framework for proposals to demonstrate that they have been designed to 

minimise their carbon footprint, energy, and water consumption and to 

ensure that such buildings are capable of responding to climate change.  

 

17.5 The applicant has submitted a sustainability statement and an energy 

strategy.  The energy strategy is proposing to use photovoltaics and air 

source heat pumps to provide the energy to serve the building, with an 

anticipated 19% reduction of CO2 compared to a notional building (L2A 

2021). 

 

17.6 In relation to water usage, officers acknowledge that the emerging 

Integrated Water Management Study for the Greater Cambridge Local 

Plan indicates that groundwater abstraction is placing significant pressure 

on water bodies (including chalk streams) that are sensitive to abstraction, 

Page 41



and there is a risk of causing deterioration in the ecology if groundwater 

abstraction increases.  

 

17.7 In this case, and given the scale of development (net increase of about 

10,000 square metres), the applicant has provided supporting information 

which demonstrates that the increased pressure on water resources would 

be very low. Impacts can be minimised through the use of planning 

conditions. 

 

17.8 The applicant has stated that their proposals will result in a minimum of 3 

credits under the Wat 01 section of BREEAM to be achieved. This equates 

to a 40% improvement over the baseline and therefore represents a 

significant reduction in water consumption. Full credits under the Wat 01 

section of BREEAM however are required in accordance with Policy 28, 

and this can be secured by planning condition [Condition 7 – BREEAM). 

 

17.9 In addition, the applicant is considering the implementation of rainwater 

recycling for irrigation purposes and within the Wat01 assessment. A 

rainwater harvesting study will be undertaken as the design progresses to 

confirm whether this is feasible and whether it would be beneficial to the 

proposed development beyond irrigation. This can also be secured by the 

same planning condition. [Condition 8 - BREEAM].   

 

17.10 The Council’s Sustainability Officer welcomes the proposed sustainability 

measures proposed for this development subject to planning conditions 

requiring the following – 

  

• BREEAM 'Excellent' Design Stage Certification to include 4 credits 

under the Wat 01 section of BREEAM [Condition 8 - BREEAM] 

• BREEAM 'Excellent' Post Construction Certification [Condition 9 – 

BREEAM Post Construction Certificate], and 

• Renewables 10% Details Compliance [Condition 7 – Energy 

Delivery Strategy] 

 

Summary 

 

17.11 It is considered that the applicants have appropriately addressed the 

issues of carbon reduction and sustainable design particularly in relation to 

water usage, and subject to conditions the proposal is in accordance with 

Policy 70 of the Cambridge Local Plan (2018) and NPPF advice. 

Page 42



18.0 Flood Risk and drainage 

18.1 Paragraph 167 of the NPPF states that when determining any planning 

applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not 

increased elsewhere.  

 

18.2 Policies 31 (Integrated water management and the water cycle) and 32 

(Flood Risk) of the Local Plan require developments to have appropriate 

sustainable foul and surface water drainage systems and minimise flood 

risk.  

 

18.3 The applicant has submitted a flood risk assessment and drainage 

strategy report in support of the application.  

 

18.4 The site is located within flood zone 1 and is a “less vulnerable” use. 

Flood Zone 1 is land assessed as having a less than 1 in 1,000 annual 

probability of river or sea flooding (<0.1%). The development therefore 

meets national flood risk guidance regarding being an appropriate location 

for this type of development. 

 

18.5 The risk from surface water flooding and artificial sources are also 

considered to be low. Groundwater levels have been recorded on site at a 

level of 2 metres below ground level. 

 

18.6 The proposed surface and foul water drainage layout is shown on 

Appendix B and C of the submitted Drainage Strategy Report and includes 

on-site attenuation to limit and control surface water discharge.  

 

18.7 The applicant has demonstrated that surface water from the proposed 

development can be managed through using blue roofs, green roofs, rain 

gardens, permeable paving, swales, and below-ground attenuation. 

Surface water will then discharge into the site-wide private surface water 

drains at a controlled rate (3 litres per second per hectare), which then 

outfalls into the Anglian Water sewer in Cowley Road. 

 

18.8 The Lead Local Flood Authority have no objection in principle to the 

proposed development, subject to planning conditions requiring a detailed 

surface water drainage scheme [Condition 28 – Surface Water 

Drainage] and a scheme to manage surface water while construction 

takes place [Condition 29 – Surface Water Drainage Scheme During 

Construction]. 

 

Page 43



18.9 Anglian Water has recommended a similar surface water drainage 

condition to the LLFA. 

 

Summary 

 

18.10 It is considered that the applicants have appropriately addressed the 

issues of water management and flood risk, and subject to conditions the 

proposal is in accordance with Local Plan policies 31 and 32 and NPPF 

advice. 

19.0 Utilities 

19.1 The applicant has submitted a utilities strategy. As discussed in the 

sustainability section, the applicant is proposing to adopt and electricity 

only approach, with no mains gas connection.  

 

19.2 The strategy reiterates Cambridge Water’s policy requirement that water 

metering will be mandatory for new developments, and that Cambridge 

Water will reserve the right to install a new meter chamber and associated 

logging equipment to monitor consumption data for the proposed 

development, and to identify any subsequent leakage, should it occur. 

 

19.3 Fire hydrants will be secured by planning condition [Condition 31 – Fire 

Hydrants]. 

20.0 Third Party Representations 

20.1 Third-party representations have been addressed in the body of the report. 

 

21.0 Other Matters 

Secured by Design 

21.1 In response to Cambridgeshire Constabulary’s Designing out crime 

officer’s comments, secured by design accreditation can be achieved 

through an application from the applicant to the Police Service.  

Public Art 

21.2 Policy 56 (Creating successful places) states that developments will 

embed public art as an integral part of the proposals. 

 

Page 44



21.3 The applicant has submitted a Public Art Strategy, which will be secured 

by condition [Condition 24 – Public Art]. 

Equalities Act 2010 

21.4 The application has been assessed against the relevant sections of the 

Equalities Act 2010, and it is not considered that the application 

discriminates against people with protected characteristics specified in the 

Act.  

Waste   

21.5 Policy 57 (Designing new buildings) requires development proposals to 

successfully integrate functional needs such as refuse and recycling.  

 

21.6 The design has considered the waste generation, storage and collection 

associated with a laboratory building and other uses such as the café, and 

has been designed with consideration for the RECAP Waste Design Guide 

document. 

Planning Obligations (S106) 

21.7 The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 require all local 

authorities to make an assessment of any planning obligation in relation to 

three tests. If the planning obligation does not pass the tests, then it is 

unlawful. The tests are that the planning obligation must be: 

 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;  

(b) directly related to the development; and  

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 

21.8 Policy 85 (Infrastructure delivery) states that planning permission for new 

developments will only be supported/permitted where there are suitable 

arrangements for the improvement or provision and phasing of 

infrastructure, services and facilities necessary to make the scheme 

acceptable in planning terms.  

 

21.9 The applicant has indicated their willingness to enter into a S106 planning 

obligation in accordance with the requirements of the Council’s Local Plan 

and the NPPF. The s106 will contribute towards suitable provision and 

phasing of transport infrastructure, in accordance with Policy 85, as well 

as appropriate on and off site green infrastructure, in accordance with 

Policy 15. 

 

Page 45



Heads of Terms 

 

21.10 The Heads of Terms (HoTs) as identified will be secured within the S106 

and are set out in the summary below: 

 

Obligation 

 

21.11 Transport – 

S106 contributions will be required to contribute towards the Council’s 

transport infrastructure strategy, with the detail to be discussed further at a 

later stage.  

 

21.12 Green infrastructure – 

S106 contributions will be required to contribute towards the Council’s 

strategic green infrastructure strategy, with the detail to be discussed 

further at a later stage.  

 

21.13 The planning obligations are necessary, directly related to the 

development and fairly and reasonably in scale and kind to the 

development and therefore the proposed Planning Obligations pass the 

tests set by the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 in 

accordance with policy 85 of the Cambridge Local Plan (2018). 

Planning Balance 

21.14 Planning decisions must be taken in accordance with the development 

plan unless there are material considerations that indicate otherwise 

(section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and section 

38[6] of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). 

 

21.15 The NPPF is a material consideration which must be taken into account 

where it is relevant to a planning application. This includes the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development found in paragraph 11 

of the NPPF, which requires approving development proposals that accord 

with an up-to-date development plan without delay, or any adverse 

impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a 

whole.  

 

21.16 The NPPF lists the three dimensions to sustainable development: 

economic, social and environmental.  These dimensions are 

interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways to 

achieve sustainable development.    

 

Page 46



21.17 The benefits and dis-benefits of the development proposals have been 

evaluated against the objectives of the NPPF and the presumption in 

favour of sustainable development, as summarised below. 

Economic Objective 

21.18 The NPPF places a clear emphasis on the importance of economic growth 

and delivering economic benefits as a key component of sustainable 

development.  

 

21.19 The proposals will deliver over 10,000 square metres of new office and 

laboratory space, and create construction jobs and employment. Due to 

the scale of the development these should also be afforded substantial 

positive weight in the decision-making process. 

Social Objective 

21.20 The NPPF places a clear emphasis on the importance of supporting 

strong, vibrant and healthy communities. 

 

21.21 The social benefits of the scheme arising from the provision of new jobs is 

considered to be of major significance.  

 

21.22 The agreed transport mitigation package will also bring social benefits, 

through prioritising sustainable travel modes to the development.  

 

21.23 The social benefits arising from the development proposals are afforded 

major significance. 

Environmental Objective 

21.24 The NPPF places a clear emphasis on protecting and enhancing the built 

and historic environment; including making effective use of land, improving 

biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising waste and 

pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including moving 

to a low carbon economy.  

 

21.25 In relation to the environmental role of sustainability, the proposed 

parameters of the development demonstrate that the site can 

appropriately accommodate the quantum of development proposed. 

 

21.26 The proposed development will contribute to improvements in habitat 

quality and a net gain in biodiversity to a minimum of 10%.   

 

Page 47



21.27 The agreed transport mitigation package will also bring environmental 

benefits, through prioritising sustainable travel modes to the development.  

 

21.28 Whilst the development will result in harmful impacts on the area in terms 

of noise and disturbance as the development is completed and disruption 

through the implementation of the traffic mitigation, this would be 

minimised and mitigated through the implementation of construction 

management plans, and as such carries moderate weight.  

 

21.29 Some weight can also be attached to the environmental harm in relation to 

the loss of some mature trees, particularly along Cowley Road. However, 

the proposal to both plant additional trees on the site and to agree to plant 

additional trees off site nearby will contribute to the wider green 

infrastructure aspirations of both Councils, and this can be considered to 

be a benefit.  

 

21.30 Officers are of the view that the environmental benefits outweigh the dis-

benefits, particularly given the provision of net gain in biodiversity and 

measures to mitigate and adapt to climate change and additional off-site 

contributions to the green infrastructure strategy.  As such, moderate 

weight can be attached to the environmental benefits of the scheme. 

Summary 

21.31 Overall, the proposed development will bring significant measurable 

economic, social and environmental public benefits that accord with the 

three dimensions of sustainable development set out in the NPPF.  It is a 

finely balanced judgement, but in exercising the planning balance, and in 

assessing the concerns raised by consultees and others, officers consider 

there are no sustainable planning objections that would outweigh the 

positive benefits arising from the development which forms a key part of 

the emerging North-East Cambridge Area Action Plan. This finely 

balanced judgement is therefore considered to weigh in favour of 

recommending the granting of planning permission. 

Conclusion 

21.32 The application is consistent with the policies of the development plan for 

the area.  This is principally owing to the site being allocated for 

development in the adopted Cambridge Local Plan. 

 

21.33 Having examined the development proposals against other material 

planning considerations, none are identified that would on their own, or in 

Page 48



combination, lead officers to consider recommending refusal of planning 

permission for the Application. 

 

21.34 Officers' analysis, as set out in this report, triggers the ‘presumption in 

favour of sustainable development’ set out in Paragraph 11 of the NPPF, 

which means approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-

date development plan without delay.   

 

21.35 Furthermore, the direction at Section 38 (6) of the 2004 Planning Act that 

the proposed development ‘must be made in accordance with the 

development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise’ 

points firmly towards the granting of planning permission in this case. 

 

21.36 Officers have carefully considered all the issues raised by the planning 

application, including evidence and opinions submitted on behalf of the 

applicants, the contributions of consultees, wider stakeholders and 

members of the public.  

 

21.37 Having also taken into account the provisions of the development plan, the 

NPPF and PPG, section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 

section 38[6] of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, and the 

views of statutory consultees and wider stakeholders, as well as all other 

material planning considerations, the proposed development is 

recommended for approval subject to the completion of a section 106 

planning agreement to secure necessary developer contributions and 

subject to a number of controlling and safeguarding conditions.  

22.0 Recommendation 

22.1 APPROVE application 23/00835/FUL subject to conditions and 

informatives as detailed in this report, with delegated authority to officers 

to carry through minor amendments to those conditions and informatives 

(and include others considered as appropriate and necessary) prior to the 

issuing of the planning permission.  

 

22.2 In the event that the application is refused, and an Appeal is lodged 

against the decision to refuse this application, delegated authority is 

sought to allow officers to negotiate and complete the Planning Obligation 

required in connection with this development. 

 

22.3 The prior completion of a Section 106 Agreement under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 with delegated authority to officers to 

Page 49



negotiate, secure and complete such an Agreement on the terms set out 

within paragraphs 21.11 and 21.12 of this report and any others 

considered appropriate and necessary to make the development 

acceptable in planning terms; and 

  

22.4 The planning conditions specified in this report and detailed in Appendix 1 

with authority delegated to officers to include any minor drafting changes 

thereto; and 

 

22.5 The relevant informatives as set out in Appendix 1 to be included at the 

discretion of officers.  

Background Papers: 

 

The following list contains links to the documents on the Council’s website and / 

or an indication as to where hard copies can be inspected. 

 

Cambridge Local Plan 

Supplementary planning documents and guidance - Cambridge City Council 

 

Page 50

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/media/6890/local-plan-2018.pdf
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/supplementary-planning-documents-and-guidance


Planning Conditions and Informatives  

General conditions 

1.  Time limits 

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years 

from the date of this permission.  

 

(Reason - To ensure that consideration of any future application for development in 

the area will not be prejudiced by permissions for development, which have not been 

acted upon)  

 

2. Approved plans 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans and documents as listed on this decision notice.  

 

(Reason - In the interests of good planning, for the avoidance of doubt and to 

facilitate any future application to the Local Planning Authority under Section 73 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990) 

 

3. Demolition and Construction Management Plan 

No development, including demolition, shall commence until a site wide Demolition 

and Construction Environmental Management Plan (DCEMP) has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

The DCEMP shall include the consideration of the following aspects of demolition 

and construction: 

 

a) Demolition, construction, and phasing programme. 

b) Details of any proposed temporary structures, works, plant or machinery 

required in relation to construction of the building of more than 10m above 

existing ground level in height. 

c) Contractors' access arrangements for vehicles, plant and personnel including 

the location of construction traffic routes to, from and within the site, details of 

their signing, monitoring, and enforcement measures. 

d) Construction/Demolition hours which shall be carried out between 0800 hours 

to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, and 0800 hours to 1300 hours on Saturday 

Page 51



and at no time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays, unless in accordance 

with agreed emergency procedures for deviation. 

e) Delivery times and collections / dispatches for construction/demolition 

purposes shall be carried out between 0800 to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 

0800 to 1300 hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays, bank or public 

holidays, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

f) Soil Management Strategy having particular regard to potential contaminated 

land and the reuse and recycling of soil on site, the importation and storage of 

soil and materials including audit trails. 

g) Noise impact assessment methodology, mitigation measures, noise 

monitoring and recording statements in accordance with the provisions of BS 

5228-1:2009+A1:2014 Code of Practice for noise and vibration control on 

construction and open sites. 

h) Vibration impact assessment methodology, mitigation measures, monitoring 

and recording statements in accordance with the provisions of BS 5228-

2:2009+A1:2014 Code of Practice for noise and vibration control on 

construction and open sites. Details of any piling construction methods / 

options, as appropriate. 

i) Dust mitigation, management / monitoring, and wheel washing measures in 

accordance with the provisions of Control of dust and emissions during 

construction and demolition. 

j) Use of concrete crushers. 

k) Prohibition of the burning of waste on site during demolition/construction. 

l) Site artificial lighting including hours of operation, position and impact on 

neighbouring properties. 

m) Drainage control measures including the use of settling tanks, oil interceptors 

and bunds. 

n) Screening and hoarding details. 

o) Details of tree protection measures. 

p) Access and protection arrangements around the site for pedestrians, cyclists 

and other road users. 

q) Procedures for interference with public highways, including permanent and 

temporary realignment, diversions and road closures. 

r) External safety and information signing and notices. 

s) Implementation of a Stakeholder Engagement/Residents Communication 

Plan, Complaints procedures, including complaints response procedures. 

t) Membership of the Considerate Contractors Scheme. 

 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved DCEMP. 

 

(Reason: To ensure the environmental impact of the construction of the development 

is adequately mitigated and in the interests of the amenity of residents/occupiers in 

accordance with Policies 35 and 36 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018)  

 

Page 52



4.Levels 

 

No development, other than demolition and site clearance, shall take place until a 

plan showing the finished floor levels of the proposed development in relation to the 

existing and proposed ground levels of the surrounding land has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 

constructed in accordance with the approved details. Ground floor levels should be 

set so that should groundwater emerge in extreme conditions, water would not be 

able to enter directly into the building. 

 

(Reason – for the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the levels of the buildings 

are built to ensure protection from groundwater flooding in accordance with Policy 32 

of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

Materials 

5.Materials 

Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no development above base course level 

shall take place until full details of the materials to be used in the construction of the 

external surfaces of the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. For the avoidance of doubt this 

includes but is not limited to all non-masonry walling systems, windows, doors, 

cladding panels, plant, flues and other external screens including structural 

members, infill panels, edge, junction and coping details, colours, surface 

finishes/textures and relationships to glazing and roofing have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This may consist of large-scale 

drawings and/or samples. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 

the approved details.  

 

(Reason - To ensure that the appearance of the external surfaces of the proposed 

buildings are appropriate in accordance with Policy 56 of the Cambridge Local Plan 

2018) 

 

Sustainability 

6. Energy Delivery Strategy 

The development, hereby permitted, shall not be occupied or used, until the 

approved approach to meet a reduction in carbon emissions has been fully 

Page 53



implemented, as set out in the Energy Strategy by Hoare Lea dated 30th January 

2023.  

 

Any associated renewable and/or low carbon technologies shall thereafter be 

retained and remain fully operational in accordance with a maintenance programme, 

which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 

before the development is first occupied. 

 

(Reason - To ensure an energy efficient and sustainable development in accordance 

with Policy 28 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018 and the Greater Cambridge 

Sustainable Design and Construction SPD 2020)  

 

7. BREEAM 

Within 6 months of commencement of development, a BRE issued Design Stage 

Authority demonstrating that BREEAM 'excellent' as a minimum will be met, with full 

credits for Wat 01 (water consumption). Where the Design Stage certificate shows a 

shortfall in credits for BREEAM 'excellent', a statement shall also be submitted 

identifying how the shortfall will be addressed. 

 

In the event that such a rating is replaced by a comparable national measure of 

sustainability for building design, the equivalent level of measure shall be applicable 

to the proposed development. 

  

(Reason - In the interests of reducing carbon emissions and promoting principles of 

sustainable construction and efficient use of buildings in accordance with Policy 28 

of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018 and the Greater Cambridge Sustainable Design 

and Construction SPD 2020)  

 

8. BREEAM Post Construction Certificate 

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until a BRE issued post 

Construction Certificate has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority, indicating that the approved BREEAM rating has been met.  

 

If such a rating is replaced by a comparable national measure of sustainability for 

building design, the equivalent level of measure shall be applicable to the proposed 

development.  

 

(Reason - In the interests of reducing carbon dioxide emissions and promoting 

principles of sustainable construction and efficient use of buildings in accordance 

Page 54



with Policy 28 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018 and the Greater Cambridge 

Sustainable Design and Construction SPD 2020) 

 

Transport 

9.Traffic management 

No demolition or construction works shall commence on site until a traffic 

management plan has been agreed with the Local Planning Authority in consultation 

with the Highway Authority. The principal areas of concern that should be addressed 

are: 

  

i) Movements and control of muck away lorries (all loading and unloading should be 

undertaken off the adopted public highway)  

ii) Contractor parking, for both phases all such parking should be within the curtilage 

of the site and not on street.  

iii) Movements and control of all deliveries (all loading and unloading should be 

undertaken off the adopted public highway)  

iv) Control of dust, mud and debris, please note it is an offence under the Highways 

Act 1980 to deposit mud or debris onto the adopted public highway. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

(Reasons - In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies 56, 80 and 

81 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

10.Construction access 

No demolition or construction activities shall be serviced directly from Milton Road 

(A1309). 

 

(Reasons - In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies 56, 80 and 

81 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

11. Kerb reinstatement 

No part of the building shall be occupied until the existing vehicular access is 

removed, the footway/grass verge is reinstated and returned to having a full face 

kerb. These works shall be undertaken at no expense to the Highway Authority.  

 

(Reason - For the safe and effective operation of the highway in accordance with 

Policies 56, 80 and 81 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

Page 55



12. Visibility splays 

No part of the building shall be occupied until pedestrian visibility splays of 2m x 2m 

have been provided each side of the vehicular access measured from and along the 

highway boundary. The splays shall be within land under the control of the applicant 

and not within the adopted public highway. The splays shall thereafter be maintained 

free from obstruction exceeding 0.6m above the level of the adopted public highway 

for the lifetime of the development. 

  

(Reason - In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies 56, 80 and 

81 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

13. Surface water onto highway 

All the proposed paved areas must be constructed so that their falls and levels are 

such that no private water from the site drains across or onto the adopted public 

highway. Please note that the use of permeable paving does not give the Highway 

Authority sufficient comfort that in future years water will not drain onto or across the 

adopted public highway and physical measures to prevent the same must be 

provided.  

 

(Reason - for the safe and effective operation of the highway in accordance with 

Policies 56, 80 and 81 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

  

14. Adopted highway 

Prior to the occupation of any development, the proposed access be constructed so 

that its falls and levels are such that no private water from the site drains across or 

onto the adopted public highway and should be constructed of a bound material for 

the first 5m from the highway boundary to prevent debris from spilling out onto the 

adopted public highway. 

  

(Reason - In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies 56, 80 and 

81 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

15. Cycle Parking Provision 

Notwithstanding the approved plans, no occupation of either building shall take place 

until details of the storage provision for all cycles and scooters for that building, 

including non-standard cycles, such as cargo bikes, and electric bikes, as well as 

Page 56



details of the mechanism to raise the double tier cycle parking shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 

The approved cycle parking provision shall be installed and made available in 

accordance with the approved plans prior to the occupation of either building. The 

cycle facilities shall thereafter be retained and shall not be used for any other 

purpose. 

 

(Reason - To ensure appropriate provision for the secure storage of bicycles in 

accordance with Policy 82 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

16. Cowley Road crossing 

No development shall be occupied until the pedestrian and cycle crossing of Cowley 

Road as shown on figure 3.4 Accessibility Plan of the Framework Travel Plan (or 

such other plan that may be approved) has been completed and available for use. 

 

(Reason – In the interests of encouraging sustainable travel to and from the site and 

to ensure appropriate pedestrian and cycle access to and from the site in 

accordance with Policy 81 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

17. Low emissions strategy 

No development above base course shall take place until a site based Low Emission 

Strategy (LES) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The LES shall include details and an implementation plan for the delivery 

of the following: 

a) Electric vehicle charging point details (at least 50% of the new car parking 

spaces to have electric charging points with details of how passive provision 

for the remainder will be able to be upgraded). 

b) Additional electric charging points on future demand (details of demand 

criteria and delivery timeline) 

c) Cycling scheme 

d) Car share and car club 

e) Public transport 

 

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme. 

 

(Reason - In the interests of reducing the impact of developments on local air quality 

and encouraging sustainable forms of transport in accordance with Policy 5 of the 

Cambridge Local Plan 2018 and the Greater Cambridge Sustainable Design and 

Construction SPD 2020, section 3.6. Pollution) 

Page 57



 

18. Travel Plan compliance 

The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the details provided in the 

submitted Framework Travel Plan. 

 

(Reason - In the interests of encouraging sustainable travel to and from the site in 

accordance with Policies 5 and 81 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

19. Car Park Management Plan 

Prior to the occupation of the building, a Car Parking Management Strategy (CPMS) 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 

CPMS shall include details to ensure that sustainable travel provision is balanced 

with appropriate on-site parking including the allocation of spaces to car sharing and 

off peak journeys.  

 

The management plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 

details. 

 

(Reason - In the interests of encouraging sustainable travel to and from the site in 

accordance with Policy 5 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

Landscape, ecology and public realm 

20. Hard and soft landscaping 

No development above base course shall take place until full details of both hard and 

soft landscaping have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority.  

 

Hard landscaping details shall include proposed finished levels or contours; means 

of enclosure; car parking layouts, other vehicle and pedestrian access and 

circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and structures (e.g. street 

furniture, refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting); proposed and existing 

functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage (particularly near tree 

planting), power, communications cables, pipelines indicating lines, manholes, 

supports), bridges and retaining structures.  

 

Soft landscaping details shall include indications of all existing trees and hedgerows 

on the land and details of any to be retained. The details shall also include 

Page 58



specification of all proposed trees, hedges, and shrub planting, which shall include 

details of species, density, tree pits, and size of stock.  

 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

  

(Reason – In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy 59 of the 

Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

21. Hard and soft landscaping – timing and implementation 

All hard and soft landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details. The works shall be carried out within the first planting season 

before the occupation of the building. If within a period of five years from the date of 

planting, or replacement planting, any tree or plant is removed, uprooted, or 

destroyed or dies, another tree or plant of the same species and size as that 

originally planted shall be planted at the same place as soon as reasonably 

practicable.  

 

(Reason - To ensure the development is satisfactorily assimilated into the area and 

enhances biodiversity in accordance with Policy 59 of the Cambridge Local Plan 

2018) 

 

22. Bird Hazard Management Plan 

Prior to the commencement of development, apart from Enabling Works, a Wildlife 

Hazard Management Plan (WHMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority.  The content of the WHMP shall include the following: 

 

a. Monitoring of any temporary or permanent standing water within the Development 

Parcel. 

b. Sustainable urban drainage schemes (SUDS) within the Development Parcel such 

schemes shall comply with AOA Advice Note 3. 

c. The management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the 

Development Parcel which may be attractive to nesting, roosting, and “loafing” 

birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice Note 8 ‘Potential Bird 

Hazards from Building Design’ (available at www.aoa.org.uk/policycampaigns/ 

operations-safety/). - the reinstatement of grass areas. 

d. Maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of height and 

species of plants allowed to grow. 

e. Which waste materials can be brought on to the Development Parcel. 

Page 59

http://www.aoa.org.uk/policycampaigns/


f. Monitoring of waste imports. - physical arrangements for the collection (including 

litter bins) and storage of putrescible waste, arrangements for and frequency of 

the removal of putrescible waste. 

g. Signs deterring people from feeding the birds. 

 

The WHMP for a Development Parcel shall be implemented as approved from the 

commencement of development on that Development Parcel and shall remain in 

force for the life of the development on that Development Parcel.  

 

(Reason: To safeguard the operations of Cambridge Airport and ensure that the 

implementation, management, and maintenance of the planting strategy addresses 

the wildlife safeguarding issues whilst also providing for long-term monitoring and 

appropriate management, in accordance with Policy 59 Policy 59 of the Cambridge 

Local Plan 2018) 

  

23. Green roof 

Details of the green roofs shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority prior to any superstructure works commencing on site. Details of 

the green roofs shall include means of access for maintenance, plans and sections 

showing the make-up of the sub-base to be used and include the following: 

 

a) Roofs can/will be biodiverse based with extensive substrate varying in depth from 

between 80-150mm, 

b) The biodiverse roof shall not be used as an amenity or sitting out space of any 

kind whatsoever and shall only be used in the case of essential maintenance or 

repair, or escape in case of emergency, 

d) Where solar panels are proposed, biosolar roofs should be incorporated under 

and in-between the panels. An array layout will be required incorporating a minimum 

of 0.75m between rows of panels for access and to ensure establishment of 

vegetation, 

f) Evidence of installation shall be required in photographic form prior to handover. 

 

The biodiverse roofs shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so 

approved and shall be maintained as such thereafter. 

 

(Reason - To ensure the development provides the maximum possible provision 

towards water management and the creation of habitats and valuable areas for 

biodiversity in accordance with Policy 31 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

Page 60



24. Public Art 

Prior to the occupation of the building, a Public Art Delivery Plan (PADP) shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The PADP 

shall include the following: 

 

a) Details of the public art and artist commission; 

b) Details of how the public art will be delivered, including a timetable for delivery; 

c) Details of the location of the proposed public art on the application site; 

d) The proposed consultation to be undertaken; 

e) Details of how the public art will be maintained;  

f) How the public art would be decommissioned if not permanent; 

g) How repairs would be carried out; 

h) How the public art would be replaced in the event that it is destroyed; 

 

The approved PADP shall be fully implemented in accordance with the approved 

details and timetabling. Once in place, the public art shall not be moved or removed 

otherwise than in accordance with the approved maintenance arrangements. 

 

(Reason - To ensure that the scheme provides suitable public art strategy in 

accordance with Policy 56 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

25. Construction Ecological management and monitoring plan 

No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation 

clearance) until a Construction Ecological Management Plan (CEcMP) has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The CEcMP 

shall include the following: 

 

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities. 

b) Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”. 

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) 

to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method 

statements). 

d) The location and timings of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity 

features. 

e) The times during which construction when specialist ecologists need to be 

present on site to oversee works. 

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication. 

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or 

similarly competent person. 

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs if applicable. 

 

Page 61



The approved CEcMP shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 

details. 

 

(Reason - To minimise disturbance, harm, or potential impact upon protected 

species in accordance with Policy 70 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

26. Lighting design for biodiversity 

No development shall be occupied until a “lighting design strategy for biodiversity” for 

features or areas that are proposed to be lit, shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the local planning authority.  The strategy shall: 

 

a) Identify those areas/features on site that are particularly sensitive for bats and 

that are likely to cause disturbance in or around their breeding sites and resting 

places or along important routes used to access key areas of their territory, for 

example, for foraging; and 

b) show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the provision of 

appropriate lighting contour plans and technical specification) so that it can be 

clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above 

species using their territory or having access to their breeding sites and resting 

places. 

 

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and 

locations set out in the strategy, and these shall be maintained thereafter in 

accordance with the strategy.  

 

(Reason - To minimise disturbance, harm, or potential impact upon protected 

species in accordance with Policy 34 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2018) 

 

27. Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) 

No development above base course shall take place until a Landscape and 

Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority. The content of the LEMP shall include the following: 

 

a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed. 

b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management. 

c) Aims and objectives of management, including how a minimum of 10% in 

biodiversity net gain will be achieved on site. 

d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives. 

e) Prescriptions for management actions. 

Page 62



f) Prescription of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of 

being rolled forward over a five-year period). 

g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan. 

h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures. 

 

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which 

the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the 

management body(ies) responsible for its delivery.   

 

The plan shall also set out (where the results form monitoring show that conservation 

aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being met) contingencies and/or remedial 

action will be identified, agreed, and implemented so that the development still 

delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved 

scheme.   

 

The approved plan will be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

 

(Reason - To minimise disturbance, harm, or potential impact upon protected 

species in accordance with Policy 70 of the Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018) 

 

Drainage 

28. Surface water drainage 

No development above base course level shall commence until a detailed design of 

the surface water drainage of the site, including details of how the scheme would be 

managed and maintained, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. Those elements of the surface water drainage system not 

adopted by a statutory undertaker shall thereafter be maintained and managed in 

accordance with the approved management and maintenance plan. 

  

The scheme shall also include:  

 

a) Detailed drawings of the entire proposed surface water drainage system, 

attenuation and flow control measures, including levels, gradients, dimensions and 

pipe reference numbers, designed to accord with the CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual (or 

any equivalent guidance that may supersede or replace it); 

b) Full detail on SuDS proposals (including location, type, size, depths, side 

slopes and cross sections); 

c)  Full details of the proposed attenuation and flow control measures 

d) Details of overland flood flow routes in the event of system exceedance, with 

demonstration that such flows can be appropriately managed on site without 

increasing flood risk to occupants; 

Page 63



e) Demonstration that the surface water drainage of the site is in accordance 

with DEFRA non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems; 

f) Full details of the maintenance/adoption of the surface water drainage 

system. 

g) Measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or 

surface water 

h) Formal agreement from a third party if discharging into their system is 

proposed, including confirmation that sufficient capacity is available. 

 

(Reason - To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained, to 

ensure that there is no increased flood risk on or off site resulting from the proposed 

development, and to ensure that the principles of sustainable drainage can be 

incorporated into the development, noting that initial preparatory and/or construction 

works may compromise the ability to mitigate harmful impacts, in accordance with 

Policies 31 and 32 of the Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018) 

 

29. Surface water drainage scheme during construction 

No development shall commence until details of measures indicating how additional 

surface water run-off from the site will be avoided during the construction works, 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

applicant may be required to provide collection, balancing and/or settlement systems 

for these flows. The approved measures and systems shall be brought into operation 

before any works to create buildings or hard surfaces commence.  

  

(Reason: To ensure surface water is managed appropriately during the construction 

phase of the development, so as not to increase the flood risk to adjacent 

land/properties or within the development itself; recognising that initial works to 

prepare the site could bring about unacceptable impacts in accordance with Policies 

31 and 32 of the Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018)  

 

Others 

30. Contaminated land 

If during the development contamination not previously identified is found to be 

present at the site, such as putrescible waste, visual or physical evidence of 

contamination of fuels/oils, backfill or asbestos containing materials, then no further 

development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) 

shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval 

from the Local Planning Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing how this 

Page 64



unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The remediation strategy shall be 

implemented as approved to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

(Reason: To protect and prevent the pollution of controlled waters, and to protect 

human health, from potential pollutants associated with current and previous land 

uses in accordance with NPPF, the Environment Agency Groundwater Protection 

Position Statement (The Environment Agency’s Approach to Groundwater 

Protection, Feb 2018, version 1.2 or any subsequent updated document), and in 

accordance with Policy 33 of the Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018). 

31. Fire hydrants 

No dwellings shall be occupied until a scheme for the provision of fire hydrants has 

been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

scheme shall include a phasing strategy for the implementation of the hydrants. All 

hydrants shall be fully installed in accordance with the approved scheme and 

phasing arrangements. 

 

(Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate water supply infrastructure to protect 

the safe working environment for all users and visitors). 

 

Informatives 

1.Green Roofs  

All green roofs should be designed, constructed, and maintained in line with the 

CIRIA SuDS Manual (C753) and the Green Roof Code (GRO). 

2.Surface Water Drainage and Infiltration Sustainable Drainage Systems 

(SuDS)  

All surface water from roofs shall be piped direct to an approved surface water 

system using sealed downpipes. Open gullies should not be used.  

Only clean, uncontaminated surface water should be discharged to any soakaway, 

watercourse or surface water sewer.  

  

The water environment is potentially vulnerable and there is an increased potential 

for pollution from inappropriately located and/or designed infiltration (SuDS). We 

consider any infiltration (SuDS) greater than 2.0 m below ground level to be a deep 

system and are generally not acceptable. All infiltration SuDS require a minimum of 

1.2 m clearance between the base of infiltration SuDS and peak seasonal 

groundwater levels. All need to meet the criteria in our Groundwater Protection: 

Page 65



Principles and Practice (GP3) position statements G1 to G13 which can be found 

here:  

  

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/groundwater-protection.  

 

In addition, they must not be constructed in ground affected by contamination and if 

the use of deep bore soakaways is proposed, we would wish to be re-consulted. The 

proposals will need to comply with our Groundwater protection position statements 

G1 and G9 to G1. 

 

3. Pollution Control 

Surface water from roads and impermeable vehicle parking areas shall be 

discharged via trapped gullies. 

   

Prior to being discharged into any watercourse, surface water sewer or soakaway 

system, all surface water drainage from lorry parks and/or impermeable parking 

areas for fifty car park spaces or more and hard standings should be passed through 

an oil interceptor designed compatible with the site being drained. Roof water shall 

not pass through the interceptor. 

   

Site operators should ensure that there is no possibility of contaminated water 

entering and polluting surface or underground waters. 

4.Oil tanks 

Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 

Development Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order), any oil 

storage tank shall be sited on an impervious base and surrounded by oil tight 

bunded walls with a capacity of 110% of the storage tank, to enclose all filling, 

drawing and overflow pipes.  The installation must comply with Control of Pollution 

Regulations 2001, and Control of Pollution (Oil Storage) Regulations 2001.  

 

Site operators should ensure that there is no possibility of contaminated water 

entering and polluting surface or underground waters. 

 

5.Dewatering during construction 

Any small scale dewatering in the course of building or engineering works which is 

greater than 20 cubic metres per day and does not meet the conditions of the 

groundwater abstraction exemption under Regulation 5 of the Water Abstraction and 

Page 66

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/groundwater-protection


Impounding (Exemptions) Regulations 2017 will require an abstraction licence from 

the Environment Agency. 

  

The Environment Agency assesses applications to abstract water against local water 

availability. In groundwater bodies where water is already fully committed, there is a 

presumption against issuing new consumptive groundwater licences. In the case of 

dewatering we consider a licence to be consumptive where the water cannot be 

returned locally to the aquifer. Whilst this may be deemed acceptable for short-term 

dewatering where water is returned to the environment, this would be assessed on a 

case-by-case basis. However, in such cases a consumptive groundwater licence 

may not be issued long-term, and the applicant must ensure that any construction is 

engineered such that permanent dewatering will not be required. This is especially 

important if the development is proposing sub surface structures such as basements. 

   

If you consider that dewatering may be necessary, please contact your local EA 

office at your earliest convenience or submit a pre-application to receive up to 15 

hours of free pre-application advice. For more information visit: 

  

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/water-management-apply-for-a-water-abstraction-or-

impoundment-licence#types-of-licence 

 

6. Works within the public highway 

The granting of a planning permission does not constitute a permission or licence to 

a developer to carry out any works within, or disturbance of, or interference with, the 

Public Highway, and that a separate permission must be sought from the Highway 

Authority for such works. 

Page 67

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/water-management-apply-for-a-water-abstraction-or-impoundment-licence#types-of-licence
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/water-management-apply-for-a-water-abstraction-or-impoundment-licence#types-of-licence


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cambridgeshire Quality Panel 

Merlin Place 

Monday 11th April 2022 

Virtual Meeting 

 

Panel: Robin Nicholson (chair), Oliver Smith, John Dales, Lindsey 

Wilkinson, Steve Platt, and Kirk Archibald.  

Local Authority: Chenge Taruvinga (GCSP), Bonnie Kwok (GCSP), Bana Elzein 

(GCSP) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Cambridgeshire Quality Charter for Growth sets out the core 

principles for the level of quality to be expected in new development 

across Cambridgeshire.  The Cambridgeshire Quality Panel provides 

independent, expert advice to developers and local planning authorities 

against the four core principles of the Charter: connectivity, character, 

climate, and community. 

 

Page 69

https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/planning/


 

 

Development overview 

Presenting team 

This scheme is promoted by Kadans Science Partner and supported by HOK, PSK, 

Hoare Lea and LandShape. The presenting team is: 

Kimberley Brown – Carter Jonas, Colin Brown – Carter Jonas, Matthew Fox – PSK 

Edward Joslin – Kadans Science Partner, Ian Fleetwood – HOK, Alan Addison – 

HOK, Nilesh Patel – HOK, Gary Clark – HOK, Helen Palmer – LandShape, Jack 

Tinsley-  Hoare Lea 

 Local authority’s request  

Planning officers have asked the Panel to focus on car and cycling parking provision, 

Milton Road frontage, Cowley Road traffic movement, scale and massing, landscape 

environment, sustainability, drainage, and biodiversity.  

Cambridgeshire Quality Panel summary  

The Panel welcomed the ambition of the scheme and were encouraged by the great 

team put together to bring the scheme forward but questioned how the building will 

meet the aspirational performance targets. The development is in a prominent location 

and is expected to set the standard for other developments coming forward in the 

strategic Cambridge North-East development area.  

These views are expanded upon below, and include comments made in closed 

session. 

Connectivity – “places that are well-connected enable easy access for all to jobs 

and services using sustainable modes” 

The Panel regretted the inability for any party to resolve the serious issues arising from 

the 5-way junction with Milton Road.  The Panel was unable to comment in any detail 

on the sustainable transport plan, as no modal share data was presented. The 

transport assessment will include this data, but it would have been useful to 

understand travel patterns at the review.   

The Panel queried the quality of cycle and walking routes to and from the site and how 

easy, convenient, and safe it is to cross Cowley Road. What facilities for crossing and 

Page 70



 

 

gaining access to the south of the site are there, where is the exact bus stop, where 

are the crossing points and how do they relate to the building’s entrances? Perhaps 

off-site works to these junctions would be necessary to facilitate these routes and 

encourage more people to walk and cycle.  

Consideration should be given to the potential conflict of people cycling and walking 

within the site, especially at peak times. Within the site, the Panel queried how people 

access the bike lift. The capacity of the lift was queried, and it was suggested that two 

lifts, instead of one, should be installed in case one should break down. Has 

consideration been given to accommodating non-standard bike types, such as cargo 

bikes or adapted cycles? The physical size of the lifts is important to avoid queues at 

peak times. Alternatively, the Panel questioned if a cycle ramp would be more 

convenient than a lift and referenced the Cambridge Station bike park.  

On public transport, the Panel questioned what links to bus stops there are and how 

these look. What can be done to improve these facilities, for example, how comfortable 

will it be to wait at the bus stop, will there be real time passenger information? 

The Panel questioned the need for a car park at all as the site is very well connected 

with the Cambridgeshire Guided Bus and the nearby North Cambridge railway station.  

If some parking is required, is 60 car parking spaces too many?  

The need for two vehicular accesses was challenged as this could create conflicts with 

pedestrians and cyclists and the additional space could be better used to enhance the 

landscape.  

 

Climate – “Places that anticipate climate change in ways that enhance the 

desirability of development and minimise environmental impact” 

The climate ambition was supported by the Panel, and they were pleased to see the 

emphasis on passive design and initial embodied carbon calculations. They suggested 

whole life carbon performance is measured on an ongoing basis, aiming higher than 

national standards.  

Page 71



 

 

Operationally, the heat pump and PV strategy looks sound and was supported but 

further consideration should be given to where these units will be located and their life 

span. How valuable are the PVs for such a building with such a small footprint?  

Overheating must be considered in relation to the ventilation strategy. As presented, 

calculations were very general, so the Panel recommended making a distinction 

between east and west and north and south facades. Is there is an opportunity to bring 

more light into the north-facing façade, which will be less prone to overheating.  

The embodied carbon targets set are exemplary, however, the terracotta material 

proposed for the cladding is very high in carbon, therefore alternatives should be 

considered.  

The Panel supported the vertical green walls to the car park but, referencing 

Singapore, queried whether there was scope for more.  

The Panel was very concerned about the fully glazed top floor prow which is likely to 

have serious overheating issues and similarly for the fully glazed atrium on the east 

side. The Panel urged the applicant to model this to design out potential overheating.   

In relation to the energy performance gap, UCL is reporting performance gaps ranging 

from 7% to 50% on completed buildings, with an average of 28%, so this scheme 

should aim higher than the desired target because the British construction industry 

struggles to deliver high performance buildings. 

The applicant explained that their glazing strategy is working towards a 40% 

benchmark but it is still work in progress. Panel comments will be taken on board and 

further modelling is necessary with the aim to produce a high performance façade.   

 

Character – “Places with distinctive neighbourhoods and where people create 

‘pride of place’ 

The elevations are wrapped rounded the corners to avoid trees but the building misses 

having a front and a back. For example, the west elevation faces Milton Road, a busy 

and noisy road that might require sound attenuation and would benefit from further 

shading than is currently proposed. This has science room displays, which the Panel 

considered to be on the wrong side of the building as people in traffic are not likely to 

Page 72



 

 

look across at the building. The southeast elevation could be better articulated and 

open up the building, with trees helping shade the atrium. The Milton Road façade 

would benefit from having a calm urban expression as the back of the building.  

The landscape is not integrated as an integral part of this scheme; it is a very basic 

proposal and despite its boundary constraints, the landscape is only seen on the 

‘leftover’ spaces instead of being fully integrated. The starting point should be what 

the landscape can do for the scheme, and not be an afterthought.  

There are positive elements, such as the reduction of hardstanding elements of the 

scheme, but more thought is needed on the functionality of the open spaces.  Such an  

interrogation of external spaces is key to understanding what planting is needed and 

whether the pedestrian and social interactions are in the right places.  

How the building elevations work in the context of the mature trees as well as the 

proposed tree planting should be considered. Retained trees should be kept in good 

condition and a management plan for them should be put in place.  

 

Community – “places where people live out of choice and not necessity, 

creating healthy communities with a good quality of life”  

The Panel were concerned about what mixed use facilities there will be in northeast 

Cambridge in the absence of a current plan for the entire site to create a vibrant 

community. If the place is too sterile, it would be difficult to attract and retain staff.  

Social interactions around informal meetings are crucial and suggestions about how 

the internal layout is configured were made. This could help inform the design of the 

façade.  

  

Specific recommendations 

• Modal share details will need to be provided as part of the next panel review.  

• Review the quality of journey experiences, and the detail of routes and 

junctions. 

• Consider providing an additional lift or a ramp for the cycle parking.  

• Consider improvements to the Milton Road bus stop  

Page 73



 

 

• Is the dual vehicle access point really needed?  

• How will the design facilitate the climate targets being met? There is anxiety 

about performance gap and how this will be avoided.   

• A recognition of the orientation should lead to a better building allowing a front 

and a back.  

• High embodied carbon cladding materials needs to be reconsidered.  

• Greening up the building is encouraged.  

• Explore the possibility of a mature garden that is easy to maintain.   

• Review the amount of glazing on the southern corner and the eastern atrium.  

• Are the science displays in the right place? 

• The landscape should be integrated with the building and not just placed 

around the building.  

• What is the purpose of the external spaces; what is the ‘visual amenity’ space 

in terms of operation? 

• Consider how trees can help with acoustics and shading.  

• Trees need a maintenance plan to assist net biodiversity gain, considering life 

in the soil as well as what is growing out of the soil.  

• Might provision for informal meeting places be reflected in the façade design.  

The opportunity for ongoing engagement with the developer and design team as the 

scheme develops would be welcomed. 

Contact details 

For any queries in relation to this report, please contact the panel secretariat via 

growthdevelopment@cambridgeshire.gov.uk 

Author: Judit Carballo  

Issue date: 21st April 2022 

 

 

 

 

Page 74

mailto:growthdevelopment@cambridgeshire.gov.uk


 

 

Appendix A – Background information list and plan 

• Main presentation 

• Applicant’s background note 

• Local authority background note 

Documents may be available on request, subject to restrictions/confidentiality. 

Massing Model as AAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Cambridgeshire Quality Panel 

Merlin Place 

Monday 27th June 2022 

Virtual Meeting 

 

Panel: Robin Nicholson (chair), David Prichard, John Dales, Lindsey 

Wilkinson, June Barnes, and Kirk Archibald.  

Local Authority: Chenge Taruvinga (GCSP), Bonnie Kwok (GCSP), Tom Davies 

(GCSP) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Cambridgeshire Quality Charter for Growth sets out the core 

principles for the level of quality to be expected in new development 

across Cambridgeshire.  The Cambridgeshire Quality Panel provides 

independent, expert advice to developers and local planning authorities 

against the four core principles of the Charter: connectivity, character, 

climate, and community. 

 

Page 77

https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/planning/


Development overview 

Redevelopment of Merlin Place for a proposed commercial development consisting 

of labs, office and seminar space, café, plant, car parking and soft landscaping 

(approx. 20,000 sqm). 

Presenting team 

This scheme is promoted by Kadans Science Partner and supported by HOK, PSK, 

Hoare Lea and HarrisonStevens. The presenting team was: 

Kimberley Brown – Carter Jonas, Colin Brown – Carter Jonas, Matthew Fox – PSK, 

Ian Fleetwood – HOK, Alan Addison – HOK, Nilesh Patel – HOK, Gary Clark – HOK, 

Neil Bancroft – HarrisonStevens, Jack Tinsley- Hoare Lea 

Local authority’s request  

Planning officers have asked the Panel to focus on car and cycling parking provision, 

Milton Road frontage, Cowley Road traffic movement, scale and massing, landscape 

environment, sustainability, drainage, and biodiversity.  

Cambridgeshire Quality Panel summary  

The Panel thanked the applicant for bringing the scheme back and for the work and 

progress made since the previous review of 11th April 2022, especially in relation to 

landscape and sustainability matters. However, there were concerns about the size of 

the building footprint, and the precedent it sets for other sites coming forward in the 

strategic Cambridge North development area. There needs to be a 3D modelling of 

this building in relation to the wider masterplan to understand its impact in this part of 

Cambridge.  

These views are expanded upon below, and include comments made in closed 

session. 

Character – “Places with distinctive neighbourhoods and where people create 

‘pride of place’ 

The Panel questioned if there are any long views of the massing and height for context 

with the wider masterplanning. The applicant explained that a study is currently 

underway, and these views will form part of the landscape assessment. Deciduous 

Page 78



trees will be planted along Milton Road and Cowley Road, and the northern section of 

the building will experience better lighting and transparency levels in winter as a result, 

whilst some existing pine trees are to be retained in southern part of the site.  

The North-East Cambridge development area will see enormous transformation, from 

a current business park environment to one of a more urban feel, which will be 

addressed by the emerging masterplan, but what contribution will the Kadans scheme 

make to this new urban area, especially in relation to comfortable pedestrian and 

cycling movements.  

The Panel was very concerned with the massing of the building and highlighted the 

lack of space around the building, the buildable area of the plot has been maximised 

and therefore the quality of the space around its perimeter is too restricted and lacks 

civic generosity. 

The Panel appreciated the elevations responding to orientation and enjoyed the idea 

of solid elevations when travelling north up Milton Road transitioning to more 

transparent elevations when travelling south.  

The landscape design approach is sound and significantly better than the previous 

scheme through protecting existing trees and providing new ones in a more 

sustainable manner. A landscape management strategy must be embedded in the 

planning application.  

As a result of the large footprint of the building, which is too big for the plot in the 

opinion of the Panel, the public realm has been relegated in its importance and good 

external social spaces are lacking. However, the pocket garden on the southern corner 

will not work as intended. The Panel suggests this area be dedicated to supporting 

biodiversity. 

Hedgerow havens were supported, and they should be planted alongside trees to 

enhance the biodiversity provision.  

Consideration should be given to how the building can adapt in future years, projecting 

forward to 20 years’ time for example. The applicant explained that this is a concrete 

framed building, because of the requirements for the laboratory science and noise and 

vibration impacts. Studies have been completed on office versus laboratory space 

adaptation, and the car park could be reduced and used as an office space in the 

Page 79



future, if parking no longer needed, so ceiling heights have been increased to plan for 

this.   

The building presents many rounded corners and the Panel asked if the idea of 

asymmetry versus symmetry had been considered at the southern end which might 

resolve the transition from one elevation to the other and make a more distinctive 

building.  

In relation to the ground floor, the Panel asked whether moving the café to the south 

of building would have provided more comfort for users, whilst moving the access to 

the northeast corner would make it better connected. The applicant explained that the 

advice received from their consultant’s WSP is that a south entrance would be an 

unsafe environment because it could create conflicts between pedestrian and 

vehicles. Additionally, the masterplan is showing an open space and possibly a 

sport/public building diagonally opposite to the north-east corner, hence the café is 

located to the north.  

The top floor glass balustrade would benefit from some refinement and could have a 

planted edge.  The seminar room could usefully be an accessible to all social space 

with a roof garden on the prow.   

Consider how staff get from the cycle store into the building. Are the offices, showers, 

and locker rooms easily accessible for all? 

The Panel recommended the involvement of a local artist early in the design process 

that could help with the use of colours and conveying the image of what is going on 

inside the building in a more most dynamic way. The red terracotta colour and general 

‘redness’ of the building could be too ‘cosy’ and the exploration of other parts of the 

colour spectrum could create something more sophisticated.  

 

Connectivity – “places that are well-connected enable easy access for all to jobs 

and services using sustainable modes” 

The Panel were pleased to see that the cycle store has been moved to the ground 

floor level to provide better accessibility to the building.  

Page 80



Plans do not show any off-site works for access and therefore questions of what 

Cowley Road would look like, where crossing points will be located and what provision 

for cycling and walking were raised. There is no information on what the provision for 

walking and cycling might be and therefore, without any improvements, how the site 

will achieve a 43% cycle mode share?  

Improvements to the Cowley Road junction were suggested. It is important to 

understand where people and staff are coming from and how the scheme can help 

with the last 100m of the cycling and walking journey and how these will work in the 

future. Consider what walking and cycling journeys from the station will be like from 

day one, before the rest of Cambridge North is developed, and other connections are 

made.  

The double vehicular access and its two cross overs are not ideal for pedestrians 

arriving on public transport. The idea of the Copenhagen crossing is supported but this 

is normally used for much narrower spaces; the access roads are very wide, so 

consideration should be given to the detail design and attractiveness for those walking 

and cycling. 

 

Climate – “Places that anticipate climate change in ways that enhance the 

desirability of development and minimise environmental impact” 

The Panel congratulated the applicant on the amount of work and measurement done 

on all sustainable aspects of the scheme, especially on the embodied carbon for the 

materials. They were surprised by terracotta being a lower embodied carbon material 

compared to some other more traditional façade materials, so welcomed its inclusion.  

(Following the meeting there has been discussion about the need to include the 

stainless steel or other support structure in this assessment). 

The inclusion of PVs and the larger array was welcomed. Consider hard wiring them 

into the plant which could possibly improve the carbon and heat generation of the 

system.  

The Panel was pleased that the elevations recognise their orientation and change as 

the building goes round. The Panel were pleased to see the science behind treating 

Page 81



the different orientation of the building but were unsure whether the southern glazed 

prow, has sufficient overhang to provide adequate shading.  

The WELL Building Standard could further demonstrate the building’s performance.  

If the building doesn’t perform well in the future, as intended, is there any mechanism 

in place to address that? The applicant said that they would be carrying out soft 

landings. 

 

Community – “places where people live out of choice and not necessity, 

creating healthy communities with a good quality of life”  

For the café to work on the northeast corner, there should be a pedestrian and cycle 

crossing, and it should be visible and clear how this is accessed.  There is a danger 

the entrance will be lost behind trees when viewed from further away. How wind will 

impact at ground floor level will also be essential for the success of the café as it should 

not be exposed to winds or feel a windy place. Will the surrounding buildings impact 

on the wind when they are eventually built? 

In relation to internal arrangements, how will disabled and non-disabled drivers access 

from the car park into the office and how will disabled people visit the building in 

general; will there be disabled bays for visitors, or do they have to use the staff car 

park? If the intention is to attract the general public into the café, for example people 

with buggies, the route must be safe, accessible, and pleasant.  

Is there potential for the café to have some exhibition space, or for school visits for 

example, to communicate the message of the work going on in the laboratory building?  

The involvement of a local artist who could involve the community with an art 

installation that maybe is visible at night-time and changes colour. 

The lighting of the walking routes to the railway station is not very pleasant at the 

moment. It’s very important in attracting tenants into the building to make them feel 

safe by providing clear signposting to bus stops and better lighting solutions along the 

route to the railway station.   

Page 82



If there is going to be a creche facility, really think about where you put that and how 

parents and staff arriving with babies, small children and their associated kit such as 

buggies. 

 

Specific recommendations 

• In the absence of civic space consider what the development is giving to the 

wider community? 

• Offsite crossing points for walking and cycling beyond the red line needs to be 

resolved to ensure it is safe for pedestrians and cyclists.    

• The pedestrian and cycling route to Cambridge North Station is not great, how 

will this be managed until further improvements are made needs to be thought 

through.   

• The detail of the double vehicle access needs to be designed to be pedestrian 

friendly; although it is a Copenhagen crossing style, it needs more detail.   

•  Make sure entrances are visible for pedestrians and cyclists.  

• Consider a WELL Building Standard assessment certification.  

• Think about wind impact on the ground floor when you enter the building and 

how this will impact on the café.  

• Landscape approach is sound but needs a tree and landscape management 

plan.  

• Given the restriction of potential social spaces, prioritisation should be given 

to biodiversity net gain. 

• Think about the tension between symmetry versus asymmetry at the southern 

prow to make a distinctive building.   

• The elevation rhythms were appreciated, but is the red just cosy? Could an 

artist help make it more dynamic? 

• The parapet around the top floor edge has the potential to make the top of the 

building better designed and could be planted. 

• Consider a dynamic night-time signature in discussion with a local artist and 

the local community.  

• What is the access for disabled staff and other visitors and where do they 

park their buggies, etc.  

Page 83



• On reflection the Panel asked if the roof space could be accessible for 

outdoor seminars and also be accessed by staff and the public.    

 

The opportunity for ongoing engagement with the developer and design team as the 

scheme develops would be welcomed. 

 

Contact details 

For any queries in relation to this report, please contact the panel secretariat via 

growthdevelopment@cambridgeshire.gov.uk 

Author: Judit Carballo  

Issue date: 5th July 2022 

 

Appendix A – Background information list and plan 

• Main presentation 

• Applicant’s background note 

• Local authority background note 

• Cambridgeshire Quality Panel Report, Merlin Place - 11th April 2022 

Documents may be available on request, subject to restrictions/confidentiality. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 84

mailto:growthdevelopment@cambridgeshire.gov.uk


East Elevation 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 23/00835/FUL - Taylor Vinters Merlin Place 460 Milton Road Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB4 0DP
	23-00835-FUL  Appendix 1 - Planning Conditions and Informatives
	23-00835-FUL  Appendix 2 - Merlin Place Cambridgeshire Quality Panel Report 1st April 2022
	23-00835-FUL  Appendix 2 - Merlin Place Cambridgeshire Quality Panel Report 2nd July 2022


